
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

GONZALES MUNICIPAL BUILDING   820 ST. JOSEPH STREET 
AGENDA – FEBRUARY 13, 2020   6:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE      
 
CITY EVENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 • Announcements of upcoming City Events   
 • Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager   
 • Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor 
 • Recognition of actions by City employees  
 • Recognition of actions by community volunteers 
   
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should fill out the speaker’s 
register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more than 3 minutes. 
 
All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any individual member thereof.  
 
Discussion by the Council of any item not on the agenda shall be limited to statements of specific factual information 
given in response to any inquiry, a recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry, and/or a proposal to place 
the item on a future agenda. The presiding officer, during the Hearing of Residents portion of the agenda, will call 
on those persons who have signed up to speak in the order they have registered. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

1.1  Swearing in Police Officers:  Alejandro Gonzalez, Cody Thomas & Jason Hinds 
 
1.2  Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on a Resolution directing staff regarding the disposition of the 

old library structure located at 415 St. Matthew 
   
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the Council with one motion.  There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless they are removed from the Consent Agenda upon the request of the 
Mayor or a Councilmember.   
   

2.1  Minutes - Approval of the minutes for the Regular Meeting of January 9, 2020 and Special Called 
Meeting of January 23, 2020 

 
2.2  Acknowledging Receipt of the 2019 Annual Racial Profiling Report 
 
2.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-10 Declaring Certain City Property 

Surplus and Authorizing the Sale of Said Property in the manner most advantageous to the City of 
Gonzales 

 
2.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-11 Authorizing the City Manager or his 

designee to enter into an agreement with the Texas Department of Public Safety “DPS” 
 
2.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-12 Authorizing the purchase of two 

Chevrolet Trucks for the Electric Department in an amount not to exceed $48,757.00 
 
2.6 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-13 Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute a Contract between the City of Gonzales and the Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory 
Board 



 
2.7 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-14 Authorizing Gonzales Main Street's 

Use of Confederate Square including the Parking Lot, Designated Street Closures, Closure of the 
Brickyard Area at Independence Park, and Sale and Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages for the 
Annual Main Street Concert Series and Star Spangled Spectacular on June 5, 12, 19, 26, and July 4, 
2020 

 
2.8 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-15 Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute an Agreement with Jay Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC. for the Street Closures, 
Consumption of Alcohol on Public Property and the Recommendation for Funding from the 
Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau in the amount of $2,500.00 for the Texas Independence 
Relay on March 27-28, 2020  

 
2.9 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-16 Authorizing the City Manager or 

designee to Submit, and Accept if Awarded, an Application and Associated Documents to the 
Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) for $40,000.00 in HSGP grant funds for Equipment 

 
2.10 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-17 Authorizing the City Manager to 

Submit, and Accept if Awarded, an Application and Associated Documents to the Edward Byrnes 
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) for $14,000.00 in JAG grant funds for Software 

 
2.11 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-18 Authorizing the Use of Texas Heroes 

Square Including the Parking Lot for the Gonzales Master Gardener’s Annual Spring Plant Sale on 
March 28, 2020 

 
 
RESOLUTIONS  

3.1 Discuss, Consider, and Possible Action on Resolution #2020-19 Approving a First Amendment to 
Loan Agreement by and Between the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation and Come and 
Take It Properties, LLC, A Texas Limited Liability Company and Historic Hospitality Management, 
LLC, A Texas Limited Liability Company 

 
3.2 Discuss, Consider, and Possible Action on Resolution #2020-20 Approving a Second Amendment 

to Loan Agreement by and Between the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation and Come 
and Take It Properties, LLC, A Texas Limited Liability Company and Historic Hospitality 
Management, LLC, A Texas Limited Liability Company 

 
3.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-21 Authorizing the City Manager to 

Extend the Depository Agreement for an additional two years with Sage Capital Bank   
 
3.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-22 Authorizing approval of the proposal 

from Mark Metzler Welding, LLC and to provide direction as to funding of project 
 
3.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-23 Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute a License Agreement with the Gonzales Little League  
 
3.6 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-24 Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute a License Agreement with the Gonzales Youth Sports League 
 
3.7 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-25 Adopting the Gonzales County 

Election Voting System And Software as Required by Chapter 123 of the Texas Election Code; 
Approving Express Vote Universal Voting System, Election Day Voting And Provisional Ballots 
In All Future Elections; Approving the Mayor's Execution of any Documents Necessary to use the 
Designated Voting System and take any additional actions reasonably necessary therewith 

 
 



 
ORDINANCES 

4.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2020-3 Ordering a General Municipal 
Election to be Held on May 2, 2020, for the Purpose of Electing One City Councilmember for Single 
Member District No. 3 and One City Councilmember for Single Member District No. 4; providing 
for early voting; providing for other matters relating to the election 

 
4.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2020-4 Amending Sections 9.416 General 

Order and 9.418 Agenda Officer of the City of Gonzales Code of Ordinances 
 

4.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2020-5 Amending Chapter 6, Health and 
Sanitation, Article 6.100 Garbage and Trash; and Amending the Rates and Fees for the Collection 
Services Contemplated Therein 

 
RESOLUTION 

5.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-26 Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute an Agreement with Frontier Access, LLC (Frontier Waste Solutions) for Solid Waste 
Collection and Disposal Services 

 
 
STAFF/BOARD REPORTS 

6.1 Financial Report for the Month of January 2020 & Quarterly Investment Report 12/31/2019 
 
6.2 City Manager, Tim Patek will update the City Council on the following: Tank #2 Rehab Project; 

Streambank Protection Independence Park Project;  CDBG / GLO Grant Project; Hydro Plant 
Ribbon Cutting Ceremony; Certified Public Management Class at Texas State; Texas City 
Manager’s Association Clinic 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

7.1  (1)  Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales will consult in 
closed session with its attorney to receive legal advice regarding pending or contemplated litigation, 
a settlement offer, or matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the 
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with 
this chapter”, to include the following matters:  

 
 a. In Re Estate of J. B. Wells litigation 
 b. Patricia Bennett and Gloria Knight v. City of Gonzales, Texas Cause No. 27,500 
 c. A Guerra Enterprise LLC D/B/A Holiday Inn Express & Suites Cause No. 27,591 
 
 

(2)  Pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales will consult in 
closed session to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property if deliberation 
in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in 
negotiations with a third person: 

 
a. Farming & Grazing Lease  
b. Unopened City Streets 

 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

8.1  Discuss and Consider any Action Resulting from Closed Session as Necessary  
 
CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 • Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for items on a future City Council agenda 
 • Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers  
 • City and community events attended and to be attended  
 • Continuing education events attended and to be attended  



  
ADJOURN 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the above items in Executive Closed Session if 
they meet the qualifications in Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.076, 551.087, of Chapter 551 of the Government 
Code of the State of Texas. 
 
I certify that a copy of the February 13, 2020, agenda of items to be considered by the Gonzales City Council was posted on the 
City Municipal Building bulletin board on the 10th day of February, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. and remained posted continuously for at 
least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting.  I further certify that the above agenda was removed on __________ 
day of ____________________, 2020 at ______am/pm.   I further certify that the following News Media were properly notified 
of the above stated meeting:  Gonzales Inquirer. 

__________________________ 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary  
 
 
 
 

The meeting facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.  Request for accommodations or 
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.  Please Contact the City Secretary's office at (830)672-2815 for 
further information. 



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on a 
Resolution directing staff regarding the 
disposition of the old library structure located 
at 415 St. Matthew  

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Oral Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2017 council requested staff to obtain quotes to repair the old library located at 415 St. 
Matthew.  The repairs included a two ton heat pump in the west zone of the library, installing a 
new roof, and fixing the foundation. The aggregate repair cost was approximately $80,000.    
 
During the 2018-2019 fiscal year budget workshop, City Council requested staff to obtain quotes 
for the preparation of an asbestos survey and removal as well as the demo of the structure.   Staff 
was able to locate a Comprehensive Asbestos Inspection report completed by 
Environmental/Occupational Solutions Corporation that was completed in October of 1996.  
Through reviewing the inspection report it was determined that the asbestos abatement was 
completed at that time.   Staff received four quotes in September of 2019 for the demolition of 
the structure that ranged from $19,515 to $40,540.  Staff contacted the individuals that submitted 
quotes at that time to verify if they would still be honored and three contractors responded that 
they would indeed be honored.  The three quotes were from Elstner Dozer Service, LLC and 
Fred’s Contract Services, LLC. and Durrett Sand & Gravel, LLC.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
Although both amounts were under the required threshold for City Council approval staff would 
like direction from Council prior to demolishing the structure.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The funds are currently budgeted within the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget in Non-
Departmental; Special Contracts GL Account 100-7-404.411 which has a budgeted balance of 
$30,000.00 to contract out for the demolition and hauling off of debris and $5,000.00 to contract 
out for preparation of asbestos survey and removal.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Contract Pricing- Elstner Dozer Service, LLC; Fred’s Contract Services, LLC. and Durrett Sand 
& Gravel, LLC.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council take the action they deem necessary.   

 

1



2



3



4



Racial Profiling Report | Full
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Reporting Date:  01/24/2020

Agency Name:  GONZALES POLICE DEPT.
TCOLE Agency Number:  177201

Chief Administrator:  TIMOTHY L. CROW

Agency Contact Information:
Phone:  (830) 672-8686 
Email:  tcrow@gonzales.texas.gov

Mailing Address:
P. O. BOX 547
716 ST. PAUL
GONZALES, TX  78629-0547

This Agency filed a full report

GONZALES POLICE DEPT. has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our policy:

1.)  clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

2.) strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the GONZALES POLICE DEPT. from engaging in racial profiling;

3.) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the GONZALES POLICE DEPT. if the 
individual believes that a peace officer employed by the GONZALES POLICE DEPT. has engaged in racial profiling 
with respect to the individual;

4.) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

5.) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the GONZALES POLICE 
DEPT. who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the GONZALES 
POLICE DEPT. policy adopted under this article;

6.) require collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a citation is issued and to arrests made as 
a result of those stops, including information relating to:

a.) the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;
b.) whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to the search; and
c.) whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before detaining that 
individual; and

7.) require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed, or 
appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision(6) to:

a.) the Commission on Law Enforcement; and
b.) the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an agency of a 
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

Executed by:  Timothy L. Crow, Chief

Date:  01/24/2020

1  of  3 5



Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Total stops:  2267
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Gender
Female 902

Male 1365

Race / Ethnicity

Black 263

Asian / Pacific Islander 7

Hispanic / Latino 940

White 1054

Alaska Native / American 
Indian

3

Was race or ethnicity known prior to stop?

Yes 32

No 2235

Reason for stop?

Violation of law 132

Preexisting knowledge 60

Moving traffic violation 1508

Vehicle traffic violation 567

Street address or approximate location of the stop

City street 2144

US highway 25

County road 4

State highway 4

Private property or other 69

Was a search conducted?

Yes 313

No 1954

Reason for Search?

consent 181

contraband 4

probable 121

inventory 6

2  of  3 6



ncident to arrest 1

Was Contraband discovered?

Yes 69

No 244

Description of contraband

Drugs 42

Currency 0

Weapons 3

Alcohol 7

Stolen property 0

Other 17

Result of the stop

Verbal warning 7

Written warning 1861

Citation 369

Written warning and arrest 1

Citation and arrest 9

Arrest 20

Arrest based on

Violation of Penal Code 18

Violation of Traffic Law 3

Violation of City Ordinance 0

Outstanding Warrant 11

Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during stop?

Yes 0

No 2267

Submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law 
Enforcement

3  of  3 7



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-10 Declaring Certain City 
Property Surplus and Authorizing the Sale of 
Said Property in the manner most 
advantageous to the City of Gonzales 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2013 the Council approved a policy whereby the Council would declare property that staff 
determined to be of no further use to the City to be surplus.  The policy also states that Council 
will recommend the disposal method of the property.   
 
The attached properties listed have been determined to no longer have a use for the City of 
Gonzales and staff respectfully requests it to be declared surplus.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Approval of this resolution would be consistent with the policy approved in 2013.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The dollar amount that the surplus property is sold for will increase the general fund revenues.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS  
DECLARING CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
SALE OF SAID PROPERTY IN THE MANNER MOST ADVANTAGEOUS TO THE 
CITY OF GONZALES; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, in 2013 the Council approved a policy whereby the Council would declare 
property that staff determined to be of no further use to the City to be surplus; and,   

WHEREAS, the policy states that Council will recommend the disposal method of the property; 
and 

WHEREAS, the attached properties listed have been determined to no longer have a use for the 
City of Gonzales and staff respectfully requests it to be declared surplus; and 

WHEREAS, the attached surplus property will be posted on the governmental auction site 
GovDeals or through the local auction company Texas Remarketing Service to be sold in a 
manner in which to be the most advantageous to the City of Gonzales. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby declares the attached 
Exhibit A as surplus and authorizes the sale of said property in accordance with the forgoing 
legislative findings.  
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

9



 

 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
          
 
              
      Connie Kacir, Mayor     
  
 
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristina Vega, City Secretary    
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

1986  FORD F9000  12YD DUMP TRUCK  
RUNS AND DRIVES, NEEDS BATTERIES, LIFT CYCLINDER ON BED LEAKS 

 
PIONEER CLUB CAR ATV 
NEW ENGINE INSTALLED 3 OR 4 YEARS AGO, WAS RUNNING BUT 
BACKFIRE AND LOSES FIRE.  

 
24 ea  CONCRETE CURB STOPS,  USED  

 
FARWAY MOWER,  MISSING PARTS, MOSTLY ENGINE & FRAME  
 
MTD YARD MACHINE 13.5HP LAWN MOWER,  CONDITION UNKNOWN 
 
WEEDEATER PUSH MOWER 4.5HP,  CONDITION UNKNOWN  
 
10FT  OVERHEAD ROLL UP GARGAGE DOOR, CONDITION UNKNOWN 
 
PALLET JACK, CONDITION UNKNOWN 
   
RED 3.5 TON FLOOR JACK, NOT WORKING 
 
9ea INCANDESENT SCHOOL ZONE FLASHING LIGHTS, WORKING  
 
1500 gal METAL WATER TANK, BOTTOM RUSTY AND LEAKS WATER. 

 
 

11



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-11 Authorizing the City 
Manager or his designee to enter into an 
agreement with the Texas Department of 
Public Safety “DPS” 

 

 

 

 
TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Texas Department of Public Safety provided the revised Interlocal Cooperation Contract for 
the Failure to Appear(FTA) Program to accommodate Chapter 706 of the Texas Transportation 
Code.  
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This Resolution will authorize the City Manager or his designee to execute the provided 
agreement with the Department of Public Safety (DPS).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Municipal Court will pay the vendor a fee of $6.00 per person for each violation which has 
been reported to the vendor and for which the Court has subsequently collected the statutorily 
required $10.00 reimbursement.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY “DPS”); AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 346 amended the law relating to the consolidation, allocation, and 
classification of costs, fines and fees associated with Municipal Courts; and 

WHEREAS, the Gonzales Municipal Court participates in the State of Texas’ Failure to Appear 
Program (“FTA Program”) and its related costs, fines and fees as per Chapter 706 of the Texas 
Transportation Code; and  

WHEREAS, DPS is charged with the administration of the FTA Program; and  

WHEREAS, the agreement attached as Exhibit A, is the agreement that the City intends to enter 
into with the DPS to continue participation in the FTA Program. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF GONZALES, GONZALES 
COUNTY TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City agrees and supports the agreement with the DPS to continue participation 
in the FTA Program. 

Section 2. The City Council authorizes the City Manager or his designee to enter into the 
agreement attached as Exhibit A on behalf of the City with the DPS. 

Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such 
recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the 
judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 4. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

13



 

 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 8. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 

 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
          
 
              
      Connie Kacir, Mayor     
  
 
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristina Vega, City Secretary    
 
 

 
 

14



15



16



17



18



19



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-12 Authorizing the purchase 
of two Chevrolet Trucks for the Electric 
Department in an amount not to exceed 
$48,757.00 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 12, 2019 the City Council of the City of Gonzales Approved the Operating 
Budget for the City of Gonzales for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2019 and ending 
September 30, 2020. 
 
The Electric Department needs to replace two trucks that are in poor shape and have been a 
costly maintenance issue for some time.  There is a 2010 truck that has transmission problems 
with over 160,000 miles and a 2001 that has several issues with over 150,000 miles on it.  It 
would be in the best interest of the city to replace these two trucks to eliminate the substantial 
maintenance cost that will be potentially incurred. 
    
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The funds are currently budgeted in Vehicles/Equipment GL Account 210-7-710.608 which has 
a budgeted balance of $56,000 in the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget and that was verified with 
the Finance Director.  The total price for two new Chevrolet trucks is $48,757.00. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
As set forth in the City’s Fiscal and Budgetary Policy Statements; Purchases made over $10,000 
but less than $50,000 shall require three written quotes or pricing obtained through any interlocal 
purchasing authority or cooperative.  The pricing was obtained using BuyBoard Purchasing 
Program which assists local governments in reducing costs through this government-to-
government procurement service available nationwide. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends approval of this resolution. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

20



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO CHEVROLET TRUCKS FOR THE 
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $48,757.00; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
  
WHEREAS, an annual operating budget for the fiscal year October 1, 2019 through September 
30, 2020, was approved and adopted by the City Council on September 12, 2019; and, 
 
WHEREAS, as set forth in the City’s Fiscal and Budgetary Policy, Purchases made over 
$10,000 but less than $50,000 shall require three written quotes or pricing obtained through any 
interlocal purchasing authority or cooperative; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the pricing for the trucks was obtained through BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing 
which assists local governments in reducing costs through a government-to-government 
procurement services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Director verified that funds are currently budgeted in 
Vehicles/Equipment GL Account 210-7-710.608 which has a budgeted balance of $56,000.00 in 
the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the total cost of the two Chevrolet Trucks is $48,757.00; and,    
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that purchasing two Chevrolet trucks for the Electric 
Department is in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will further promote the public 
health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the purchase of two 
Chevrolet Trucks for the Electric Department in an amount not to exceed $48,757.00.   
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

21



 

 

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

 
 

 
 

 

22



QUOTE# 00AA              CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET 
End User: CITY OF GONZALES     Contractor: CALDWELL COUNTRY   

Contact Name: NICK DELEON     CALDWELL COUNTRY  

Email: NDELEON@GONZALES.TEXAS.GOV   Prepared By: Chris Collins             
Averyt Knapp 

Phone #: 830-203-2998                Email:chris@caldwellcountry.com 
aknapp@caldwellcountry.com 

Fax #:      Phone #:979-200-8149                   
979-567-6116 

Location City & State: GONZALES, TX    Fax #:    979-567-0853 

Date Prepared: APRIL 25, 2019    Address:  P. O. Box 27,  
Caldwell, TX 77836 

Contract Number: BUY BOARD #521-16 Tax ID #  14-1856872 

Product Description: 2020 CHEVROLET 1500 SILVERADO 4X2 REGULAR CAB LWB 
CC10903   
 
A  Base Price & Options:                                                                                                                                        $20,982  

 
B  Fleet Quote Option: 

Code Description Cost Code Description Cost 
 4X2-REGULAR CAB, 

6,800#GVWR, 4.3L-V6, 
6-SPD AUTOMATIC, 40-
20-40 VINYL BENCH, 
FULL RUBBER FLOOR, 
AIR CONDITION, AMFM-
STEREO W/BLUETOOTH, 
TILT, 8’ BED, REAR 
STEP BUMPER, REAR 
VISION CAMERA   

INCL     

 GM WARRANTY 
5YR/100,000 MILES 
POWERTRAIN @ N/C 

INCL  CALDWELL COUNTRY  
PO BOX 27 
CALDWELL, TEXAS 77836 

 

       
         
      
      
Subtotal B  INCL 
 
C  Unpublished Options  

Code Description Cost Code Description Cost 
        
      
      
      
      
      
Subtotal C      
 
D  Other Price Adjustments (Installation, Delivery, Etc…) 

Subtotal D   INCL  
 
E  Unit Cost Before Fee & Non-Equipment Charges(A+B+C+D) $20,982   
    Quantity Ordered                                             1 
Subtotal E $20,982  
 23



F  Non-Equipment Charges (Trade-In, Warranty, Etc…) 
    BUY BOARD FEE                              $400 
     
    IF HARD EXEMPT TAGS REQUIRED BY DEALERSHIP, ADD $150 TO PRICE N/I 
 
H.  Total Purchase Price (E+F)                                                    $ 

 
  

 
Estimated Delivery Date: Q4-2019 / Q1-2020 

 

24



QUOTE# 001              CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET 
End User: CITY OF GONZALES     Contractor: CALDWELL COUNTRY   

Contact Name: NIC DELEON       CALDWELL COUNTRY  

Email: NDELEON@GONZALES.TEXAS.GOV   Prepared By:  Averyt Knapp 

Phone #: 830-203-2998                  Email: aknapp@caldwellcountry.com 

Fax #:      Phone #:  979-567-6116 

Location City & State: GONZALES, TX    Fax #:    979-567-4376 

Date Prepared: JANUARY 22, 2020    Address:  P. O. Box 27,  
Caldwell, TX 77836 

Contract Number: BUY BOARD #601-19 Tax ID #  14-1856872 

Product Description: 2020 CHEVROLET 2500HD SILVERADO 4X2 DOUBLE CAB 4DR 
SWB CC20753    
 
A  Base Price & Options:                                                                                                                                        $26,975  

 
B  Fleet Quote Option: 

Code Description Cost Code Description Cost 
 4X2-DOUBLE CAB 4DR, 

10,050#GVWR, 6.6L-V8 
GAS, 6-SPD 
AUTOMATIC, 3.73 
LOCKING REAR AXLE 
DIFFERENTIAL, 40-20-
40 VINYL SEATS, FULL 
RUBBER FLOOR, AIR 
CONDITION, AMFM-
STEREO W/BLUETOOTH, 
TILT, POWER WINDOWS, 
POWER LOCKS, 6.5’ 
BED, REAR STEP 
BUMPER, REAR VISION 
CAMERA, OEM HD 
TRAILER TOW PACKAGE 

INCL     

 GM WARRANTY 
5YR/100,000 MILES 
POWERTRAIN @ N/C 

INCL  CALDWELL COUNTRY  
PO BOX 27 
CALDWELL, TEXAS 77836 

 

       
         
      
      
Subtotal B  INCL 
 
C  Unpublished Options  

Code Description Cost Code Description Cost 
        
      
      
      
      
      
Subtotal C      
 
D  Other Price Adjustments (Installation, Delivery, Etc…) 

Subtotal D   INCL  
 25



E  Unit Cost Before Fee & Non-Equipment Charges(A+B+C+D) $26,975 
    Quantity Ordered                                             1 
Subtotal E $26,975 
 
F  Non-Equipment Charges (Trade-In, Warranty, Etc…) 
    BUY BOARD FEE                              $400 
     
G.  Color of Vehicle: WHITE  
 
H.  Total Purchase Price (E+F)                                                    $27,375  
 

Estimated Delivery Date: 90 DAYS APPX 
 

26



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-13 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a Contract between the 
City of Gonzales and the Gonzales County 
Mental Health Advisory Board 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution  
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 12, 2019 the City Council of the City of Gonzales Approved the Operating 
Budget for the City of Gonzales for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2019 and ending 
September 30, 2020.  In the adopted budget, funds were appropriated for a Special Contract with 
Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory Board in the amount of $2,640.  Annually the City 
County is asked to approve various Special Contracts whereby the City provides funding to local 
entities.  The disbursement of these funds will be quarterly.  On December 12, 2019 City Council 
of the City of Gonzales authorized the City Manager to execute a contract between the City of 
Gonzales and the Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory Board for the budgeted amount.  
After meeting with the representative from the board, it was found that revisions to the 
Agreement were needed.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This contract will benefit the general welfare and well-being of the City of Gonzales and achieve 
a legitimate public purpose.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The funds are currently budgeted in Account 100-7-101.521 Gonzales County Mental Health 
Advisory Board for $2,640 and the amount was verified with the Finance Director.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Special request letter, Financial Summary of 2015-2019 and the Contract is attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF GONZALES AND THE GONZALES COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH 
ADVISORY BOARD; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, on September 12, 2019 the City Council approved the operating budget for Fiscal 
Year 2019-2020; and  
 
WHEREAS, within said approved budget, funds are currently budgeted in Account 100-7-
101.521 and allocated to the Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory Board for $2,640; and  
 
WHEREAS, annually the City Council is asked to approve various Special Contracts whereby 
the City provides funding to local entities to benefit the general welfare and well-being of the 
City of Gonzales and achieve a legitimate public purpose; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory Board, Inc. requests funding to 
provide and maintain the physical site and utilities for the Mental Health Clinic which provides 
programs and services to meet the needs of the citizens in the City of Gonzales by helping with 
medication, food or other services which achieves a legitimate public purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, after meeting the representative of the Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory 
Board, it was found that revisions to the Agreement were needed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that entering into an agreement with the Gonzales County 
Mental Health Advisory Board is in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will further 
promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the City Manager to 
execute a contract with Gonzales County Mental Health Advisory Board in the amount specified 
herein the attached Exhibits. 

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

28



 

 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 
 

 

     
 

  

 

29



AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is entered into on the ____ day of _________, 2020, between the City of 
Gonzales (hereinafter referred to as the “City” or the “City of Gonzales”) and the Gonzales 
County Mental Health Advisory Board, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Advisory Board”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Advisory Board provides and maintains funds for various programs and services 
to meet the needs of the citizens in the City of Gonzales by helping with medication, food or 
other services including, but not limited to the services below; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Advisory Board provides funds to the Bluebonnet Trails Community Health 
Services of Gonzales to help destitute clients pay for medicine, food and miscellaneous expenses 
for clients and families; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Advisory Board provides funds to Bethany Community of Hope to be used to 
pay rent for their facilities that provide safe, secure housing, vocational training, support services, 
and education opportunities for women who are in recovery from sex trafficking, prostitution, 
and drug addiction; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Advisory Board provides funds for holiday meal baskets and rent for clients 
located at Independence Homes which serves low income households where the head, co-head 
or spouse has a diagnosed chronic mental illness; and     
 
WHEREAS, the City finds that these programs and services provided by the Advisory Board are 
a benefit to the general welfare and well-being of the City of Gonzales and achieve a legitimate 
public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The City shall provide funding to the Advisory Board in the amount of $2,640.00 for the 

budget that runs from October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020.  The Advisory Board shall 
provide programs and services to meet the needs of the City of Gonzales’ citizens.  City funds 
will be disbursed quarterly pending receipt of satisfactory quarterly information and is also 
subject to available funding. 

 
2. The Advisory Board shall provide quarterly financial and program information regarding 

financial position, use of funds, services offered, and number of people served at the end of 
each quarter.  Quarters will end December 31st, March 31st, June 30th, and September 30th of 
each year.  Financial reports along with invoices and/or proof of payment shall 
accompany the financial statements.  

 
3. The Advisory Board shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its officers, directors, 

employees, agents, assigns and contractors and will indemnify, hold harmless and defend the 
City of Gonzales regarding any claims, costs, or actions arising from the acts of the Advisory 
Board. 

30



 
4. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
5. Should any term, covenant, or provision of this Agreement be deemed invalid, unlawful, or 

otherwise improper by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then such term, covenant, or 
provision shall be reformed and modified to the minimum extent necessary to achieve 
conformity with applicable law.  Said reformation shall be deemed effective as of the original 
date of this Agreement.  Other provisions are not affected. 

 
6. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period of one year, period beginning October 1, 2019 

and ending September 30, 2020. 
 

Executed this _____ day of ______________, 2020. 
 
 

CITY OF GONZALES     
 
 
By: _____________________________ 

Timothy Patek, City Manager 
 

Attest:_____________________________ 
  
 
 

GONZALES COUNTY MENTAL  
HEALTH ADVISORY BOARD, INC. 

 
 

By:________________________________ 
Name   Title 

 
      
       Attest:______________________________ 
 

31



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-14 Authorizing Gonzales 
Main Street's Use of Confederate Square 
including the Parking Lot, Designated Street 
Closures, Closure of the Brickyard Area at 
Independence Park, and Sale and Consumption 
of Alcoholic Beverages for the Annual Main 
Street Concert Series and Star Spangled 
Spectacular on June 5, 12, 19, 26, and July 4, 
2020 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Gonzales Main Street, Inc. is preparing for the annual Main Street Concert Series and Star 
Spangled Spectacular event on June 5, 12, 19, 26, and July 4, 2010.  They are requesting the use 
of Confederate Square including the parking lot on St. Joseph, St. Paul, and St George Streets, 
closure of St George Street from St. Joseph Street to St. Paul Street, closure of the Brickyard area 
at Independence Park on July 4th for the purpose of staging a fireworks show and public safety, 
and sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages on June 5, 12, 19, 26, and July 4, 2020.  They 
intend to block off the Confederate Square at 6:30 am on June 5, 12, 19, 26, and July 4th and will 
remove barricades by 11 pm. The brickyard area at Independence Park will be closed at 7:00 am 
until 11:00 pm July 4th.  The June events are from 6 pm until 10 p.m.  July 4th will be from 2 p.m. 
to 10 p.m.  
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This annual event is listed within the service agreement between the City of Gonzales and 
Gonzales Main Street, Inc.   The approval would authorize a variance to allow the sale and 
consumption of alcohol on public property.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The event will bring people to downtown Gonzales to shop and dine at our local restaurants.   
Approximate attendance is 500 people per Friday night and is open to the public.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully requests the approval of this resolution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING GONZALES MAIN STREET USE OF THE CONFEDERATE SQUARE 
INCLUDING THE PARKING LOT, DESIGNATED STREET CLOSURES, CLOSURE 
OF THE BRICKYARD AREA AT INDEPENDENCE PARK, AND SALE AND 
CONSUMPTION OF ALOCHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR THE ANNUAL MAIN STREET 
CONCERT SERIES AND STAR SPANGLED SPECTACULAR ON JUNE 5, 12, 19, 26, 
AND JULY 4, 2020 AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

WHEREAS, the Annual Main Street Concert Series and Star Spangled Spectacular is listed 
within the service agreement between the City of Gonzales and Gonzales Main Street, Inc.; and, 

WHEREAS, Gonzales Main Street requests the use of the Confederate Square including the 
parking lot for the Annual Main Street Concert Series and Star Spangled Spectacular on June 5, 
12, 19, 26, and July 4, 2020; and, 

WHEREAS, the square will be blocked off at 6:30 am with the June concerts beginning at 6:00 
p.m. July 4th concert beginning at 2 p.m., and 

WHEREAS, the events will end at 10:00 pm with take down to be completed by 11:00 pm; and  

WHEREAS, St. George Street from St. Joseph Street to St. Paul Street will be blocked off from 
6 pm to 11 pm; and  

WHEREAS, the brickyard area at Independence Park will be closed beginning at 7:00 am on July 4, 
2020 for staging a fireworks show and public safety; and  

WHEREAS, a variance was approved for the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages at the events; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that said events increase the community spirit of the 
City of Gonzales and serve a public purpose.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby authorizes the Gonzales 
Main Street's use of the Confederate Square including the parking lot; designated street closures; 
closure of the Brickyard Area at Independence Park; and sale and consumption of alcoholic 
beverages for the Annual Main Street Concert Series and Star Spangled Spectacular on June 5, 
12, 19, 26, and July 4, 2020 as stated herein and set forth in the submitted Event form attached 
hereto as Exhibit A.    
 

33



 

 

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary   

 

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-15 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Jay 
Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC. for the 
Street Closures, Consumption of Alcohol on 
Public Property and the Recommendation for 
Funding from the Gonzales Convention and 
Visitor Bureau in the amount of $2,500.00 for 
the Texas Independence Relay on March 27-
28, 2020 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Texas Independence Relay is a 200-mile journey tracing the route of Sam Houston and the  
Texan army. The relay begins in historic Gonzales and ends in downtown Houston. There were 
approximately 2,300 participants and spectators in 2019. Texas Independence Relay desires to 
enter into an agreement with the City of Gonzales to conduct the relay in 2020. 
 
This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute the provided agreement with Jay 
Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC outlining the City’s and Mr. Hilscher’s responsibilities 
regarding the Texas Independence Relay. 
 
The event request will grant Jay Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC the use of the JB Wells 
Expo Center and permit the consumption of alcoholic beverages on March 27 for the Texas 
Independence Relay Social and closure of the 400 block of Smith Street on March 27 & 28, 2020 
for the Texas Independence Relay. 
 
Furthermore, this will approve the recommendation made from the Gonzales Convention and 
Visitor Bureau to fund the request of $2,500.00 for advertising for the event. Payment will be 
made to Jay Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
The expenditure of public funds for a private enterprise requires specific approval by the City 
Council and must serve a public purpose.   Texas Independence Relay event will result in an 
increase in both sales tax revenue and hotel occupancy tax revenue during the event.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
During the budgeting process the City Council approved $4,000 to be allocated to line item 
#500-7-811.522 TX Independence Relay.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 

 
 

45



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATION OF GONZALES CONVENTION & VISITOR 
BUREAU FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,500.00 TO 
JAY HILSCHER DBA LONE STAR RELAYS FOR ADVERTISING FOR THE TEXAS 
INDEPENDENCE RELAY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau received an application from The 
Texas Independence Relay; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Texas Independence Relay is a 200-mile journey tracing the route of Sam 
Houston and the Texan army beginning in historic Gonzales and ending in downtown Houston; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, there were approximately 2,300 participants and spectators in 2019; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in the FY 2019-20 a line item budget of $4,000 was included for the Texas 
Independence Relay; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Texas Tax Code Section 351.001 authorizes the use of Hotel Occupancy Tax for 
expenses that promote tourism and the convention and hotel industry including advertising and 
promotional programs that attract tourists to the municipality or its vicinity and the 
encouragement, promotion, improvement, and application of the arts, including instrumental 
and vocal music; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that expending the funds contemplated in the 
manner required by the Texas Tax Code is in the best interest of the City and its citizens, and 
serves a public purpose; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby authorizes street closure at 400 block of Smith Street on 
March 27, 2020 and March 28, 2020, and the provision of traffic control cones along race route 
in Gonzales city limits; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that contributing in-kind labor and materials in the 
manner contemplated by the attached Event Agreement is in the best interest of the City and its 
citizens, and serves a public purpose. 
 

.NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby approves the Gonzales 
Convention and Visitor Bureau’s recommendation to fund $2,500 to the Texas Independence 
Relay for advertising to be expended in conformance with Texas Tax Code Section 351.001. 

46



 

 

Section 2. The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the City Manager to 
execute the Event Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and the Facility Rental Agreement 
with J.B. Wells Expo Center attached as an exhibit to the Event Agreement. 

Section 3. The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes street closure at 400 
block of Smith Street on March 27, 2020 and March 28, 2020, and the provision of traffic control 
cones along the Relay route within the Gonzales city limits as depicted in the approved Event 
traffic control plan provided by the Texas Independence Relay. 

Section 4. The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the sale and service of 
alcohol at the Texas Independence Relay on property owned by the City of Gonzales as 
contemplated in the Event Agreement. 

Section 5. The City Council reserves the right to request all necessary receipts, invoices and 
other records the City Manager deems necessary to confirm that Hotel Occupancy Tax expended 
pursuant to this Resolution were expended for expenses authorized by this Resolution. 
 
Section 6. Jay Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC shall refund the City of Gonzales any 
Hotel Occupancy Tax funds determined by the State Comptroller, the Secretary of State or other 
state agency to be an unauthorized expenditure under Texas Tax Code Section 351.001. 
 
Section 7. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 8. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 9. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 10. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 11. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 12. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 

47



 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

 

 

48



TEXAS INDEPENDENCE RELAY EVENT AGREEMENT 

 

This event agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between City of Gonzales (City) and 
Jay Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC for the Texas Independence Relay (Texas Independence 
Relay, or Relay). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Texas Independence Relay is a ~200 mile journey tracing the route of Sam 
Houston and the Texan Army; and, 

WHEREAS, the relay begins in historic Gonzales and ends downtown Houston, Texas; and, 

WHEREAS, the Texas Independence Relay celebrates the culture and history of the role of 
Gonzales in Texas Independence and serves a public purpose in educating the citizens and visitors 
about the history of this region of Texas; and 

WHEREAS, there were ~2,300 participants and many spectators in 2019; and  

WHEREAS, the City and Texas Independence Relay desires to enter into an agreement for the 
2020 event to be held March 27 and 28. 

I. TERMS 

 The City of Gonzales shall provide the following: 

1) $2,500.00 of Hotel/Motel tax to support promotion of the Relay.  Invoices and cancelled 
checks/credit card receipts for $2,500 must be submitted by Texas Independence Relay 
before September 30, 2020, the end of the Fiscal year, providing 10 business days for staff 
to review, confirm or seek further information from the Texas Independence Relay.  Once 
documentation is approved, staff will forward to the City Finance Department for 
immediate release of funds. 

2) Use of the JB Wells Expo Center for the Friday Social on March 27, 2020. Texas 
Independence Relay staff will have access to the building beginning at 1:00 p.m. the day 
of the Social.   

3) Provide 8 trash cans and one portable light tower at Memorial Museum on Friday, March 
27. 

4) Call from City Hall informing the entire community of the Relay and firing of the cannon 
using reverse 911 

5) City will contact media to notify community of Relay and firing of cannon. 

7) Furnish 2 ADA and 10 regular porta potties at starting line and Memorial Museum to be 
placed in front of the DAR house on Moore Street. 

8) Put up and take down large flag across street at starting line at times agreed upon in 
meetings prior to the event. 

49



9) Street closure at 400 block of Smith Street on March 27, 2020 and March 28, 2020, and 
provide cones along race route in Gonzales city limits. 

10) Temporary, yet sufficient electrical service that meets the event’s needs, on Smith 
Street on the Saturday morning of the event. 

11) Place link on tour Gonzalestx.travel for Texas Independence Relay 

Texas Independence Relay shall: 

1) Provide City with written post event report within 60 days after event 
 

2) Provide City with copies of advertisements (or other proof of promotion, such as 
expos), cancelled checks and invoices in the amount of $2,500 (or greater, if the Texas 
Independence Relay desires) before September 30, 2020, for timely reimbursement.  
Invoices and cancelled checks/credit card receipts must be submitted by Texas 
Independence Relay, allowing 10 business days for staff to review, confirm or seek 
further information from the Texas Independence Relay.  Once documentation is 
approved, staff will forward to the City Finance Department for immediate release of 
funds. 

 
3) Pay for 2 uniformed officers (at $50 per hour, per officer; total $100 per hour or total 

$400.00) stationed at JB Wells Expo Center for the duration of the Friday night event, 
6:30 – 10:30pm.  (4 hours) 

 
4) Pay for 1 uniformed officer (at $50 per hour, total $400.00) for cannon security at the 

Memorial Museum and Smith Street the night before the relay from 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 
a.m. (8 hours) 
 

5) The undersigned does indemnify and hold harmless the City of Gonzales from and 
against any and all loss cost (including statutory liability and liability under workers 
compensation laws) in connection with claims for damages as a result of injury or 
death to any person or damage to any property sustained by the individual(s) 
participating in or attending the Texas Independence Relay, using the facilities, or any and 
all other persons which arise from, or in any manner grow out of, any act or neglect on 
or about the event facility by the individuals using the facility, participating in or 
attending the event,, guests or invitees. 
 

6) Provide Liability Insurance coverage for the event naming the City as an additional insured, in 
the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined for both bodily injury and 
property damage on a per occurrence or claims basis. 
 

7) Require each event participant to execute the Release of Liability attached as Exhibit 
A, or add the City of Gonzales to any existing Release of Liability and provide copies 
to the City prior to the event. 
 

8) Provide a traffic control plan approved by Gonzales Police Chief Crow. 

50



 

II. GOVERNING LAW 
 
The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement and all obligations hereunder of the 
parties are performable in Gonzales, Texas.  Venue for any legal proceeding is Gonzales County, 
Texas. 
 

III. NON-ASSIGNMENT 
 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 
respective legal representatives, successors and assigns. Neither the City nor the Relay shall assign 
any duty of this Agreement, excepting those already identified herein, without written consent of 
the other. 
 

IV. SEVERABILITY 
 
Should any provisions of this Agreement for any reasons be held to be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any 
other provision hereof. 
 

V. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto or by any 
third party to create the relationship of principal and agent or of partnership or of joint venture or 
of any association whatsoever between the parties, it being expressly understood and agreed that 
no provision contained in this Agreement nor any act or acts of the parties hereto shall be deemed 
to create any relationship between the parties other than the relationship of  independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purpose of effecting the provisions of this Agreement. 

Executed on the dates set forth below by the undersigned authorized representatives of the 
parties  

 

__________________________   ___________________________ 

Tim Patek, City Manager      Representative 
City of Gonzales     Jay Hilscher DBA Lone Star Relays, LLC. 
Dated: ______________________   Dated: ________________________ 

51



 
 RELEASE OF LIABILITY 
 
 
 In consideration of my being allowed to participate in the Texas Independence Relay 
(“Event”) to be held on March 27 and 28, 2020, I do hereby assume full and complete 
responsibility for any injury or accident which may occur due to my involvement in the Event, or 
while I am on the property or premises of the City of Gonzales (“City”), and I hereby release 
and hold harmless the City for any and all injuries and damages that I may sustain whether 
the same be caused by my negligence, the negligence of another participant, or the negligence of 
the City.   
 
 I acknowledge that I am familiar with the risks involved in participating in this Event and 
that injuries, including death, can occur during participation.  I certify that I have read the rules and 
requirements of each competition featured in the Event and to the best of my knowledge I have no 
physical, mental or medical limitation that would prevent my participation in the Event 
competitions for which I have registered.    
 
 Furthermore, I understand and agree that at no time during this Event will I be considered an 
agent or employee of the City, nor will the City's insurance cover any claim for damage or injury 
that I may sustain during this Event.  Any and all claims for damage or injury will be my sole 
responsibility.  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Name of Participant's Organization (if applicable) 
 
_________________________       
Participant's Printed Name       
 
_________________________        
Participant's Signature  
 
_________________________ 
*Parent or Guardian 
            
_________________________       
Date: 
 
*for any minor who participates, the parent or guardian’s signature is also required 

52



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020  

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-16 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Submit, and Accept if Awarded, 
an Application and Associated Documents to 
the Homeland Security Grant Program 
(HSGP) for $40,000.00 in HSGP grant funds 
for Equipment 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales Police Department is applying for a Homeland Security Grant Program 
(HSGP) grant for the purchase of a UTV outfitted with emergency equipment. The city has events 
throughout the year which would prove the use of the UTV useful. Currently when the department 
needs this type of equipment it is borrowed from the parks department, golf course or from friends 
of the officers. The UTV’s are not equipped with emergency equipment nor are they properly 
marked. Other uses for the UTV are regional in nature ranging from search and rescue to disaster 
response. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no match for this grant. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution and associated documents. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, TO APPLY FOR AND 
ACCEPT IF AWARDED, A HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM (HSGP) 
GRANT TO PURCHASE AN EMERGENCY EQUIPPED UTV RESPONSE VEHICLE; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City supports the acceptance of application for and acceptance of HSGP grant 
funds from the Homeland Security Grant Program for an emergency equipped UTV for search, 
rescue, patrol duties and disaster relief efforts. 
 
WHEREAS, for UTV, amount would be "not to exceed" $40,000 
 
WHEREAS, the Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) plays an important role in the 
implementation of the National Preparedness System by supporting the building, sustainment and 
delivery of core capabilities essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal of a secure and 
resilient nation; and  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the HSGP funds, the 
City Council assures that the funds will be returned to the Office of the Governor (OOG) in full; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council designates the City Manager, or his designee, as the City's 
authorized official.  The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or 
terminate the agreement on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby authorizes the City 
Manager to apply for and accept if awarded, HSGP grant funding from the Homeland Security 
Grant Program to Purchase a UTV emergency response vehicle. 
 
Section 2.   The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such 
recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the 
judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4.      This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America. 

54



 

 

  
Section 5.  If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 
 
Section 6.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7.       This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
          
 
              
      Connie Kacir, Mayor     
  
 
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristina Vega, City Secretary    

55



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-17 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Submit, and Accept if Awarded, 
an Application and Associated Documents to 
the Edward Byrnes Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) for $14,000.00 in JAG 
grant funds for Software 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales Police Department is applying for a Edward Byrnes Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) grant for the purchase of Case Management Software for our current 
Record Management System and image mapping software. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no match for this grant. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution and associated documents. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR DESIGNEE, TO APPLY FOR AND 
ACCEPT IF AWARDED, A EDWARD BYRNES MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE 
GRANT (JAG) FOR  $14,000.00 IN JAG GRANT FUNDS FOR SOFTWARE; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City supports the acceptance of application for and acceptance of Edward Byrnes 
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) for Case Management Software and image mapping 
software; and, 
 
WHEREAS, For Software, amount would be "not to exceed" $14,000; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Edward Byrnes Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) plays an important 
role in the implementation of the National Preparedness System by supporting the building, 
sustainment and delivery of core capabilities essential to achieving the National Preparedness Goal 
of a secure and resilient nation; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the JAG funds, the City 
Council assures that the funds will be returned to the Office of the Governor (OOG) in full; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council designates the City Manager, or his designee, as the City's 
authorized official.  The authorized official is given the power to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or 
terminate the agreement on behalf of the applicant agency.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby authorizes the City 
Manager to apply for and accept if awarded, Edward Byrnes Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
(JAG) for the purchase of Case Management Software and image mapping Software. 
 
Section 2.   The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such 
recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the 
judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3.  All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4.      This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America. 
  
Section 5.  If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 

57



 

 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 
 
Section 6.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7.       This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
          
 
              
      Connie Kacir, Mayor     
  
 
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristina Vega, City Secretary    

58



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-18 Authorizing the Use of 
Texas Heroes Square Including the Parking 
Lot for the Gonzales Master Gardener’s 
Annual Spring Plant Sale on March 28, 2020 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Gonzales Master Gardeners are preparing for their annual Spring Plant Sale on March 28, 
2020.  They are requesting the use of Texas Heroes Square, including the parking lot on St. 
Louis and St. James.  They intend on setting up Friday, March 27, 2020 at 10:00 a.m. and will 
take down at 2:00 p.m. on Saturday, March 28, 2020.   The event will be held from 8:30 a.m. 
until 1:00 p.m.  There will be an approximate attendance of 300-400 people and is open to the 
public.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF TEXAS HEROES SQUARE INCLUDING THE 
PARKING LOT FOR THE GONZALES MASTER GARDENER’S ANNUAL SPRING 
PLANT SALE ON MARCH 28, 2020; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Gonzales Master Gardeners uses Texas Heroes Square including the parking 
lot for the Gonzales Master Gardeners Annual Spring Plant Sale; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the event will be held from 8:30 a.m. until 1:00 p.m. on March 28, 2020 and will 
have an approximate attendance of 300-400 people; and,  
 
WHEREAS, set up for the event will be 10:00 a.m. on Friday, March 27, 2020 with take down 
at 2:00 p.m. on March 28, 2020; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that said events increase the community spirit of the 
City of Gonzales, and therefore serve a public purpose.      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby authorizes the use of 
Texas Heroes Square including the parking lot for the Gonzales Master Gardener’s Annual 
Spring Plant Sale on March 28, 2020 as stated herein and set forth in the submitted Event form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.    

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

60



 

 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary  

 

61



62



63



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-19 Approving a First 
Amendment to Loan Agreement by and 
Between the Gonzales Economic Development 
Corporation and Come and Take It Properties, 
LLC, A Texas Limited Liability Company and 
Historic Hospitality Management, LLC, A 
Texas Limited Liability Company 
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Come and Take It Properties, LLC has three loans with GEDC.  All loans are current.  Kasia 
Pabian, Individually, and Carl Caple, Individually, are the borrowers.  Kasia Pabian has a buyer 
for the property; however, she proposes to have a Lease to Purchase Contract with Tiffany 
Hutchinson, Historic Hospitality Management, LLC.  Ms. Pabian proposes to guarantee payment 
of the Loans with GEDC and Ms. Hutchinson IS responsible for other requirements of the 
Agreements. 
 
GEDC Board unanimously approved amendments to two Agreements which include all three 
loans.     
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Approving GEDC Board action Amending Agreements with borrowers is consistent with previous City 
Council actions 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No Fiscal Impact as the amount owed to GEDC and payment schedule does not change. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Amended Agreements 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The GEDC Board respectfully requests City Council approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

64



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-19 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND COME AND 
TAKE IT PROPERTIES, LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AND 
HISTORIC HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT, LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS,   the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the 
“GEDC”) is a Type B Economic development corporation, created pursuant to Chapter 505 of 
the Texas Local Government Code, as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, on or about December 6, 2016, GEDC and Come and Take It Properties, LLC 
(hereinafter referred to as “Come and Take It”) entered into the original Loan Agreement in the 
amount of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Original Loan Agreement”) regarding financial assistance to repair the Dilworth Inn & 
Suites, located at 601 St. Joseph Street, City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Come and Take It desires to assign some of the obligations of the Original 
Loan Agreement to Historic Hospitality Management, LLC; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 10(c) of the Original Loan Agreement provides that the Original Loan 
Agreement may not be assigned without the express written consent of the other party; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, by this First Amendment consents 
to the assignment to Historic Hospitality Management of certain obligations contained in 
Sections 4(b) (Operation of the Dilworth Inn & Suites) and 4(c) (Job Creation and Retention 
requirements) of the Original Loan Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS:  
  
Section 1.    That the foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct findings of the 
City of Gonzales, Texas, and are fully incorporated into the body of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, hereby approves the First 
Amendment to Loan Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and is 
incorporated herein for all purposes, and authorizes the Mayor to execute this Resolution. 
 
Section 3.   That this Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage 
 
DULY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, on this the 13th day of 
February, 2020. 

 

65



 

 

APPROVED: 
 
 
      
Connie L. Kacir, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
        

66



 

 FIRST AMENDMENT  
TO 

LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the 
“First Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the GONZALES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Texas non-profit corporation (hereinafter referred to as 
the “GEDC”), and COME AND TAKE IT PROPERTIES, LCC, a Texas limited liability 
company (hereinafter referred to as the “Developer”) and HISTORIC HOSPITALITY 
MANAGEMENT, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as “Historic 
Hospitality Management”): 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, on or about December 6, 2016, the GEDC and Developer entered into the 

original Loan Agreement in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($25,000.00) (hereinafter referred to as the “Original Loan Agreement”) regarding financial 
assistance to reapir the Dilworth Inn & Suites, located at 601 St. Joseph Street, City of Gonzales, 
Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign some of the obligations of the Original Loan 

Agreement to Historic Hospitality Management; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 10(c) of the Original Loan Agreement provides that the Original 

Loan Agreement may not be assigned without the express written consent of the other party; and 
 
WHEREAS, the GEDC by this First Amendment consents to the assignment to Historic 

Hospitality Management of certain obligations contained in Sections 4(b) (Operation of the 
Dilworth Inn & Suites) and 4(c) (Job Creation and Retention requirements) of the Original Loan 
Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the agreements contained herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the GEDC, Developer, and Historic Hospitality Management agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS INCORPORATED. 
 
 The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this First Amendment and 
shall be considered part of the mutual covenants, consideration and promises that bind the parties. 
 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT TO ORIGINAL LOAN AGREEMENT. 
 
(a) Amendment to Original Loan Agreement.  That Section 4(b) of the Original Loan 

Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“(c) Operate Dilworth Inn & Suites.  Historic Hospitality Management covenants and 

67



              
Page 2 of 6 

First Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 12:30:40 PM 

agrees during the Term of this Agreement, to maintain, operate, and keep open to 
the general public the Boutique Hotel located on the Property.” 

 
(b) Amendment to Original Loan Agreement.  That Section 4(c) of the Original Loan 

Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“(d) Job Creation and Retention. Historic Hospitality Management covenants and 
agrees during the Term of this Agreement to use commercially reasonable and good 
faith efforts to employ and maintain (or cause to be employed and maintained by 
the applicable tenant(s) and/or occupant(s) constituting such uses located on the 
Property) a minimum of ten (10) Full-Time Equivalent Employment Positions 
working at the Property. Historic Hospitality Management covenants and agrees 
beginning on December 1, 2020, and during the Term of this Agreement, Historic 
Hospitality Management shall deliver to Lender an annual compliance verification 
signed by a duly authorized representative of Historic Hospitality Management that 
shall certify the number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Positions, and shall 
disclose and certify the average wage for all Full-Time Equivalent Employment 
Positions (the “Annual Compliance Verification”). Historic Hospitality 
Management covenants and agrees beginning on December 1, 2020, and annually 
thereafter during the Term of this Agreement, there will be a total of two (2) Annual 
Compliance Verifications due and submitted to the Lender covering the Full-Time 
Equivalent Employment Positions created and maintained during the Term of this 
Agreement. All Annual Compliance Verifications shall include quarterly IRS 941 
returns, or Texas Workforce Commission Employer Quarterly Reports.” 

 
SECTION 3.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 
 The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this First Amendment: 
 
(a) Amendments. This First Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 

of the parties as to the matters set forth in this First Amendment.  No alteration of or 
amendment to this First Amendment shall be effective unless given in writing and signed 
by the party or parties sought to be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment.   

 
(b) Applicable Law and Venue. This First Amendment shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created 
hereunder are performable in Gonzales County, Texas.  Venue for any action arising under 
this First Amendment shall lie in the state district courts of Gonzales County, Texas. 

 
(c) Assignment. The parties shall have the right to assign its rights and/or obligations under 

this First Amendment, or any interest herein, without the prior written consent of the other 
Parties.  

 

68



              
Page 3 of 6 

First Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 12:30:40 PM 

(d) Binding Obligation. This First Amendment shall become a binding obligation on the 
signatories upon execution by all signatories hereto. GEDC warrants and represents that 
the individual executing this First Amendment on behalf of the GEDC has full authority to 
execute this First Amendment and bind the GEDC to the same. Developer warrants and 
represents that the individual executing this First Amendment on Developer’s behalf has 
full authority to execute this First Amendment and bind it to the same. Historic Hospitality 
Management warrants and represents that the individual executing this First Amendment 
on Historic Hospitality Management’s behalf has full authority to execute this First 
Amendment and bind it to the same. 

 
(e) Caption Headings.  Caption headings in this First Amendment are for convenience 

purposes only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions of the First 
Amendment. 

 
(f) Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same 
document. 

 
(g) Effective Date. The effective date (the “Effective Date”) of this First Amendment shall be 

the date of the latter to execute this First Amendment by and between the GEDC, 
Developer, and Historic Hospitality Management. 

 
(h) Original Loan Agreement and any Amendments. All of the terms, conditions, and 

obligations of the Original Loan Agreement and any other amendments remain in full force 
and effect except where specifically modified by this First Amendment. 

 
(i) Severability.  The provisions of this First Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, 

section, subdivision, sentence, clause, or phrase of this First Amendment is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law or contrary to any rule or 
regulation have the force and effect of the law, the remaining portions of the First 
Amendment shall be enforced as if the invalid provision had never been included. 

 
(j) Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this First Amendment. 
 
  

69



              
Page 4 of 6 

First Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 12:30:40 PM 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be duly 
executed. 

 
GEDC: 
 
GONZALES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
a Texas non-profit corporation 

 
 

By:         
Dewey Smith, President 

      Date Signed:        
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF GONZALES   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of      
, 2020, by Dewey Smith, President of the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation, a Texas 
non-profit corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
   
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 
  

70



              
Page 5 of 6 

First Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 12:30:40 PM 

DEVELOPER: 
 
COME AND TAKE IT PROPERTIES, LLC, 
A Texas limited liability company 
 
 
       
Kasia Pabian, Manager 
Date Signed:       
 
 
 
 

STATE OF       § 
      § 
COUNTY OF      § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of    
 , 2020, by Kasia Pabian, Manager of Come and Take It Properties, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, on behalf of said company. 
 
 
             

Notary Public, State of     
 
 
  

71



              
Page 6 of 6 

First Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 12:30:40 PM 

HISTORIC HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT: 
 
HISTORIC HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT, 
LLC, 
A Texas limited liability company 
 
 
       
Name:        
Title:        
Date Signed:       
 
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF      § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of    
 , 2020, by      ,      of Historic Hospitality 
Management, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of said company. 
 
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 

 

72



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-20 Approving a Second 
Amendment to Loan Agreement by and 
Between the Gonzales Economic Development 
Corporation and Come and Take It Properties, 
LLC, A Texas Limited Liability Company 
And Historic Hospitality Management, Llc, A 
Texas Limited Liability Company 
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Come and Take It Properties, LLC has three loans with GEDC.  All loans are current.  Kasia 
Pabian, Individually, and Carl Caple, Individually, are the borrowers.  Kasia Pabian has a buyer 
for the property; however, she proposes to have a Lease to Purchase Contract with Tiffany 
Hutchinson, Historic Hospitality Management, LLC.  Ms. Pabian proposes to guarantee payment 
of the Loans with GEDC and Ms. Hutchinson IS responsible for other requirements of the 
Agreements. 
 
GEDC Board unanimously approved amendments to two Agreements which include all three 
loans.  
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Approving GEDC Board action Amending Agreements with borrowers is consistent with previous City 
Council actions 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No Fiscal Impact as the amount owed to GEDC and payment schedule does not change. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Amended Agreements 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The GEDC Board respectfully requests City Council approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

73



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-20 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND 
COME AND TAKE IT PROPERTIES, LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY AND HISTORIC HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT, LLC, A TEXAS 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN IMMEDIATE 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS,   the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the 
“GEDC”) is a Type B Economic development corporation, created pursuant to Chapter 505 of 
the Texas Local Government Code, as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 6, 2014, the GEDC and Come and Take It Properties, LLC 
(hereinafter referred to as “Come and Take It”)  entered into the original Loan Agreement 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Original Loan Agreement”) regarding financial assistance to 
construct improvements to the existing Dilworth Bank Building, located at 601 St. Joseph Street, 
City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 18, 2018, the GEDC and Come and Take It entered into the First 
Amendment (hereinafter referred to as the “First Amendment”) regarding financial assistance to 
construct improvements to the existing Dilworth Bank Building, located at 601 St. Joseph Street, 
City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Come and Take It desires to assign some of the obligations of the Original 
Loan Agreement to Historic Hospitality Management, LLC; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 10(c) of the Original Loan Agreement provides that the Original Loan 
Agreement may not be assigned without the express written consent of the other party; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, by this Second Amendment 
consents to the assignment to Historic Hospitality Management of certain obligations contained 
in Sections 4(c) (Operation of the Bed and Breakfast Establishment) and 4(d) (Job Creation and 
Retention requirements) of the Original Loan Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS:  
  
Section 1.    That the foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct findings of the 
City of Gonzales, Texas, and are fully incorporated into the body of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, hereby approves the Second 
Amendment to Loan Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and is 
incorporated herein for all purposes, and authorizes the Mayor to execute this Resolution. 
 

74



 

 

Section 3.   That this Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage. 
 
DULY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, on this the 13th day of 
February, 2020. 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
      
Connie L. Kacir, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
        

75



 

 SECOND AMENDMENT  
TO 

LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
 This SECOND AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Second Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the GONZALES 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Texas non-profit corporation (hereinafter 
referred to as the “GEDC”), and COME AND TAKE IT PROPERTIES, LCC, a Texas limited 
liability company (hereinafter referred to as the “Developer”) and HISTORIC HOSPITALITY 
MANAGEMENT, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as “Historic 
Hospitality Management”): 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 6, 2014, the GEDC and Developer entered into the 

original Loan Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Original Loan Agreement”) regarding 
financial assistance to construct improvements to the existing Dilworth Bank Building,located at 
601 St. Joseph Street, City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 18, 2018, the GEDC and Developer entered into the First 

Amendment (hereinafter referred to as the “First Amendment”) regarding financial assistance to 
construct improvements to the existing Dilworth Bank Building,located at 601 St. Joseph Street, 
City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign some of the obligations of the Original Loan 

Agreement and First Amendment to Historic Hospitality Management; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 10(c) of the Original Loan Agreement provides that the Original 

Loan Agreement may not be assigned without the express written consent of the other party; and 
 
WHEREAS, the GEDC by this Second Amendment consents to the assignment to Historic 

Hospitality Management of certain obligations contained in Sections 4(c) (Operation of the Bed 
and Breakfast Establishment) and 4(d) (Job Creation and Retention requirements) of the Original 
Loan Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the agreements contained herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the GEDC, Developer, and Historic Hospitality Management agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS INCORPORATED. 
 
 The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this Second Amendment 
and shall be considered part of the mutual covenants, consideration and promises that bind the 
parties. 
 
  

76



              
Page 2 of 6 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 11:39:59 AM 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT TO ORIGINAL LOAN AGREEMENT. 
 
(a) Amendment to Original Loan Agreement.  That Section 4(c) of the Original Loan 

Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“(c) Operate Boutique Hotel.  Historic Hospitality Management covenants and agrees 
during the Term of this Agreement, to maintain, operate, and keep open to the 
general public the Boutique Hotel located on the Property.” 

 
(b) Amendment to Original Loan Agreement.  That Section 4(d) of the Original Loan 

Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

“(d) Job Creation and Retention. Historic Hospitality Management covenants and 
agrees during the Term of this Agreement to use commercially reasonable and good 
faith efforts to employ and maintain (or cause to be employed and maintained by 
the applicable tenant(s) and/or occupant(s) constituting such uses located on the 
Property) a minimum of ten (10) Full-Time Equivalent Employment Positions 
working at the Property. Historic Hospitality Management covenants and agrees 
beginning on December 1, 2020, and during the Term of this Agreement, Historic 
Hospitality Management shall deliver to Lender an annual compliance verification 
signed by a duly authorized representative of Historic Hospitality Management that 
shall certify the number of Full-Time Equivalent Employment Positions, and shall 
disclose and certify the average wage for all Full-Time Equivalent Employment 
Positions (the “Annual Compliance Verification”). Historic Hospitality 
Management covenants and agrees beginning on December 1, 2020, and annually 
thereafter during the Term of this Agreement, there will be a total of six (6) Annual 
Compliance Verifications due and submitted to the Lender covering the Full-Time 
Equivalent Employment Positions created and maintained during the Term of this 
Agreement. All Annual Compliance Verifications shall include quarterly IRS 941 
returns, or Texas Workforce Commission Employer Quarterly Reports.” 

 
SECTION 3.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 
 The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Second Amendment: 
 
(a) Amendments. This Second Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and 

agreement of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Second Amendment.  No 
alteration of or amendment to this Second Amendment shall be effective unless given in 
writing and signed by the party or parties sought to be charged or bound by the alteration 
or amendment.   

 
(b) Applicable Law and Venue. This Second Amendment shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created 

77



              
Page 3 of 6 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 11:39:59 AM 

hereunder are performable in Gonzales County, Texas.  Venue for any action arising under 
this Second Amendment shall lie in the state district courts of Gonzales County, Texas. 

 
(c) Assignment. The parties shall have the right to assign its rights and/or obligations under 

this Second Amendment, or any interest herein, without the prior written consent of the 
other Parties.  

 
(d) Binding Obligation. This Second Amendment shall become a binding obligation on the 

signatories upon execution by all signatories hereto. GEDC warrants and represents that 
the individual executing this Second Amendment on behalf of the GEDC has full authority 
to execute this Second Amendment and bind the GEDC to the same. Developer warrants 
and represents that the individual executing this Second Amendment on Developer’s behalf 
has full authority to execute this Second Amendment and bind it to the same. Historic 
Hospitality Management warrants and represents that the individual executing this Second 
Amendment on Historic Hospitality Management’s behalf has full authority to execute this 
Second Amendment and bind it to the same. 

 
(e) Caption Headings.  Caption headings in this Second Amendment are for convenience 

purposes only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions of the Second 
Amendment. 

 
(f) Counterparts.  This Second Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the 
same document. 

 
(g) Effective Date. The effective date (the “Effective Date”) of this Second Amendment shall 

be the date of the latter to execute this Second Amendment by and between the GEDC, 
Developer, and Historic Hospitality Management. 

 
(h) Original Loan Agreement and any Amendments. All of the terms, conditions, and 

obligations of the Original Loan Agreement, First Amendment, and any other amendments 
remain in full force and effect except where specifically modified by this Second 
Amendment. 

 
(i) Severability.  The provisions of this Second Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, 

section, subdivision, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Second Amendment is for any 
reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law or contrary to any 
rule or regulation have the force and effect of the law, the remaining portions of the Second 
Amendment shall be enforced as if the invalid provision had never been included. 

 
(j) Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Second 

Amendment. 
  

78



              
Page 4 of 6 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 11:39:59 AM 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be duly 
executed. 

 
GEDC: 
 
GONZALES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
a Texas non-profit corporation 

 
 

By:         
Dewey Smith, President 

      Date Signed:        
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF GONZALES   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of      
, 2020, by Dewey Smith, President of the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation, a Texas 
non-profit corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
   
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 
  

79



              
Page 5 of 6 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 11:39:59 AM 

DEVELOPER: 
 
COME AND TAKE IT PROPERTIES, LLC, 
A Texas limited liability company 
 
 
       
Kasia Pabian, Manager 
Date Signed:       
 
 
 
 

STATE OF       § 
      § 
COUNTY OF      § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of    
 , 2020, by Kasia Pabian, Manager of Come and Take It Properties, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, on behalf of said company. 
 
 
             

Notary Public, State of     
 
 
  

80



              
Page 6 of 6 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales Economic Development Corporation – Come and Take It Properties, LLC  
and Historic Hospitality Management, LLC 
1/27/2020 11:39:59 AM 

HISTORIC HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT: 
 
HISTORIC HOSPITALITY MANAGEMENT, 
LLC, 
A Texas limited liability company 
 
 
       
Name:        
Title:        
Date Signed:       
 
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF      § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of    
 , 2020, by      ,      of Historic Hospitality 
Management, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of said company. 
 
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 

 

81



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-21 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Extend the Depository Agreement 
for an additional two years with Sage Capital 
Bank   

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution  
 
BACKGROUND: 
On May 9, 2017 the City Council Designated a Depository for the City of Gonzales and 
Authorized the City Manager to Execute a Depository Agreement with Sage Capital Bank.  On 
May 22, 2017 the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation Designated a Depository for 
the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation and Authorized the Board Chair to execute a 
Depository Agreement with Sage Capital Bank.  The Agreement shall terminate April 30, 2020, 
however it may be extended for an additional two years with the written mutual agreement of all 
parties 60 days before the termination date which would extend the Depository Agreement to 
May 1, 2022.  The City Manager and Finance Director of the City of Gonzales and the 
President/CEO of the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation would prefer to extend the 
Depository Agreement for the City of Gonzales and the Gonzales Economic Development 
Corporation.  The Gonzales Economic Development Corporation will hold their regularly 
scheduled meeting on February 24, 2020 to discuss the Depository Agreement Extension.       
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with what has been done in the past.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Depository Agreement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXTEND THE DEPOSITORY 
AGREEMENT FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWO YEARS WITH SAGE CAPITAL BANK; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 105, Subchapter B of the Local Government Code, the City 
Council of every municipality shall designate, by an order recorded in it’s minutes, the bank, 
credit union, or savings association which will serve as the depository for the municipality’s 
funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales and Gonzales Economic Development  
Corporation shall select a primary Depository through banking services procurement process 
which satisfies the requirement listed in the Investment Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, as authorized under Chapter 105, Subchapter B of the Local Government Code, the 
City of Gonzales and the Economic Development Corporation received applications for the 
performance of depository services on April 26, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales and the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation 
entered into a Depository Agreement with Sage Capital Bank on June 1, 2017 as authorized 
under Chapter 105, Subchapter B of the Local Government Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to the Depository Agreement, it will terminate on April 30, 2020, but 
may be extended for an additional two years to May 1, 2022 with the mutual agreement of both 
parties; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation will hold their regularly 
scheduled meeting on February 24, 2020 to discuss the Depository Agreement Extension; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that extending the Depository Agreement with Sage Capital 
Bank is in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will further promote the public health, 
safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the City Manager to 
extend the Depository Agreement for an additional two years with Sage Capital Bank. 

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

83



 

 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

84



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-22 Authorizing approval of 
the proposal from Mark Metzler Welding, 
LLC and to provide direction as to funding of 
project.  

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Gonzales Main Street, several Departments and Organizations of the City hold events that are in 
need of a stage for the purpose of bringing entertainment events to Gonzales.  The cost of stage 
has been budgeted in the City Budget under General Funds, Main Street Department for 2019-
2020.  As instructed by City Manager Tim Patek a committee consisting of Daisy Scheske-
Freeman, Keith Schauer, Anne Dollery, Ashley Simper and Barbara Friedrich was formed to 
discuss several options.  They met on November 19, 2019 to discuss different stage options.  
They discussed the possibility of building a permanent stage on Confederate Square, purchasing 
a manufactured mobile stage, and considering Mark Metzler Welding, LLC’s design to build a 
custom stage.  Needing further information from Mark Metzler, the committee met with Mark on 
December 4th to go over his plans.  Daisy Scheske Freeman, Keith Schauer, Anne Dollery and 
Barbara Friedrich were present.  The stage will be a 30 x 16 metal frame with metal plate 
flooring coated in slip resistant herculiner paint.  It can be easily moved from location to location 
by a truck.  The committee agreed that a permanent stage on Confederate Square would not be a 
feasible option as this would take up valuable parking space on the square and would be limited 
to events that are just held on Confederate Square.  A mobile stage would give more 
organizations an opportunity to use the stage and could be easily set up at any location.  A 
manufactured stage would be 20x15, which is quite small and could not handle some of the 
bands orgainzations would like to hire.  Discussion was made as to the maintenance of a 
manufactured stage versus Mark Metzler Welding’s proposal.  The manufactured mobile stages 
have hydraulic outriggers and are powered by electric pump and gas motor whereas Mark’s 
design is assembled manually.  Considering size and maintenance of the stage, the committee 
recommended they propose to go with Mark Metzler Welding, LLC’s plans to build the stage for 
a cost of $43,500.00.  This recommendation was to be presented to the Main Street Advisory 
Board for recommendation to City Council.  
 
The Gonzales Main Street Advisory Board had a called meeting on January 7, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 
to discuss recommendation to City Council for the purchase of a stage.  John Boothe, Gregory 
Webb, Connie Dolezal, Sherri Schellenberg, Shelli Shelton, Debbie Toliver, Meena Patel, Karen 
Jacobs, D’anna Robinson, Amy Cersnoke, Cheri Lane, and Carlos Camarillo were present 
constituting a quorum.  Mark Metzler was present to answer any questions.  The board discussed 
the various options.  Following discussion, Gregory Webb moved to recommend to City Council 

85



 

 

to move forward with Mark Metzler Welding LLC’ s plans to build a stage.  Shelli Shelton 
seconded the motion.  The motion prevailed by unanimous vote.  
 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
As set forth in the City’s Fiscal and Budgetary Policy Statements; all purchases made over 
$10,000 but less than $50,000 shall require three written quotes or pricing obtained through any 
interlocal purchasing authority or cooperative. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Account #100-7-105-608 has budgeted amount of $85,000.00 in the 209-2020 Fiscal Year 
Budget that was verified with the Finance Director.  The purchase price for the new stage with 
attachments will be $43,500.00.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully requests the approval of this resolution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSAL FROM MARK METZLER WELDING, LLC. AND 
TO PROVIDE DIRECTION AS TO FUNDING OF PROJECT; AND ESTABLISHING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
  
WHEREAS, an annual operating budget for the fiscal year October 1, 2019 through September 
30, 2020, was approved and adopted by the City Council on September 12, 2019; and, 
 
WHEREAS, as set forth in the City’s Fiscal and Budgetary Policy, Purchases made over 
$10,000 but less than $50,000 shall require three written quotes or pricing obtained through any 
interlocal purchasing authority or cooperative; and,  
 
WHEREAS, three written quotes were requested from three vendors for proposed stage; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Director verified that funds are currently budgeted in 
Vehicles/Equipment GL Account 100-7-105.608 which has a budgeted balance of $85,000.00 in 
the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, if purchased from Mark Metzler Welding, LLC. the total cost of the proposed stage 
$43,500.00; and,    
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that purchasing portable stage from Mark Metzler 
Welding, LLC. is in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will further promote the 
public health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the purchase of 
portable stage from Mark Metzler Welding, LLC. in an amount not to exceed $43,500.00.   
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 

87



 

 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

 
 

 
 

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-23 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a License Agreement with 
the Gonzales Little League.  

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales has provided the baseball fields for Gonzales Little League for many years 
at no cost. There has never been a license agreement in place for the use of the facilities.   
 
City staff has met with the Gonzales Little League Board and reviewed the Agreement together 
and all parties understand why this agreement is needed.  City staff will be available to answer 
any questions asked by council. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
A License Agreement is needed for citizens utilizing city property.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
This License Agreement includes a fee associated with paying the metered electricity of the 
fields and concession stand the expense the City incurs with utilities of the fields the Little 
League uses. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

114



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LICENSE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE GONZALES LITTLE LEAGUE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales desire to execute a facility license agreement for the use of 
the baseball, softball and T-ball fields at the Independence Park; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the provision of opportunities for Gonzales youth to participate in team sports 
serves an important public purpose of the community; and, 
 
WHEREAS, annually city tax dollars go towards funding the maintenance and utilities provided 
at the facilities at no charge to the Gonzales Little League and,  
 
WHEREAS, within the license agreement the Gonzales Little League has agreed to pay the City 
of Gonzales the metered electricity for the fields and concession stand utilized; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement will be for six months beginning February 2020 through August 
2020 for Little League; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby finds that the execution of the 
license agreement with Gonzales Little League is in the best interest of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby approves the License Agreement 
with Gonzales Little League attached hereto as Exhibit A, and authorizes the execution of said 
Agreement by the City Manager. 
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 

115



 

 

Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

116



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-24 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute a License Agreement with 
the Gonzales Youth Sports League 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales has provided the soccer fields for Gonzales Youth Sports League for many 
years at no cost. There has never been a license agreement in place for the use of the facilities.   
 
City staff has met with the Gonzales Youth Sports League and reviewed the Agreement together 
and all parties understand why this agreement is needed.  City staff will be available to answer 
any questions asked by council. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
A License Agreement is needed for citizens utilizing city property.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
This License Agreement includes a fee associated with all soccer players of $2.00 each to help 
cover the expense the City incurs with maintenance of the fields the League uses to help cover 
the expense the City incurs with maintenance of the soccer fields. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LICENSE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE GONZALES YOUTH SPORTS LEAGUE; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales and the City of Gonzales and the Gonzales Youth Sports 
League desire to execute a facility license agreement for the use of the soccer fields at East 
Lions, Brickyard, and J.B. Wells; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the provision of opportunities for Gonzales youth to participate in team sports 
serves an important public purpose of the community; and, 
 
WHEREAS, annually city tax dollars go towards funding the maintenance and utilities provided 
at the facilities at no charge to the Gonzales Youth Sports League; and,  
 
WHEREAS, within the license agreement the Gonzales Youth Sports League has agreed to pay 
the City of Gonzales $2.00 per player to assist with the maintenance of the fields utilized; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement will be for four months beginning August 2020 through November 
2020; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby finds that the execution of the 
license agreement with Gonzales Youth Sports League is in the best interest of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby approves the License Agreement 
with Gonzales Youth Sports League attached hereto as Exhibit A, authorizes the execution of 
said Agreement by the City Manager. 
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 

118



 

 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

119



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-25 Adopting the Gonzales 
County Election Voting Software as required 
by Chapter 123 of the Texas Election code; 
Approving Express Vote Universal Voting 
System, Election Day Voting and Provisional 
Ballots in all Future Elections; Approving the 
Mayor's Execution of any Documents 
Necessary to use the Designated Voting 
System and take any additional actions 
reasonably necessary therewith 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Gonzales County adopted a new Electronic Voting System to be utilized in the County elections 
on August 12, 2019.  The City of Gonzales has always utilized the County’s AutoMark voting 
machine to satisfy the accessibility requirements in Section 61.012 of the Texas Election Code. 
The County has done away with the AutoMark machines and purchased the DS200 precinct 
scanner and the ExpressVote ballot marking device to be utilized in all future elections.  Since 
the City has always utilized the County equipment to satisfy the Election Code requirements the 
adoption of the voting equipment is in the best interest of the City.  In order to satisfy ADA 
compliance requirements as well as to be in compliant with Chapter 123 of the Texas Elections 
Code the City must adopt the system for use in the elections.      
 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Chapter 123 of the Texas Elections Code states that before a voting system may be used in 
elections, the authority designated by this section, by resolution, order, or other official action of 
the authority, must adopt the system for use in the elections. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The 2019-2020 Fiscal Budget includes $6,000.00 to be expended for the general election.  The 
cost associated with the equipment is $75.00 per piece of equipment per election.  The City 
anticipates the use of three ExpressVote Ballot Marking Devices and two DS200 precinct digital 
scanner and tabulator.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 

 
 
 
 

120



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-25 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
ADOPTING THE GONZALES COUNTY ELECTION VOTING SYSTEM AND 
SOFTWARE AS REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 123 OF THE TEXAS ELECTION CODE; 
APPROVING EXPRESS VOTE UNIVERSAL VOTING SYSTEM, ELECTION DAY 
VOTING AND PROVISIONAL BALLOTS IN ALL FUTURE ELECTIONS; 
APPROVING THE MAYOR'S EXECUTION OF ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
USE THE DESIGNATED VOTING SYSTEM AND TAKE ANY ADDITIONAL 
ACTIONS REASONABLY NECESSARY THEREWITH. 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to achieve the ongoing goal of meeting the voting needs of the residents 
of Gonzales County, Gonzales County has determined the purchase of a new voting system is 
necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Gonzales County Clerk selected the new Electronic Voting System from 
Election System & Software (ES&S) and was approved by the Texas Secretary of State's office 
on August 1, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Secretary of State has officially approved the contract between 
Gonzales County and ES&S for the purchase of the Express Vote Universal Voting System, and 
the Gonzales County Commissioners approved the equipment on August 12, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Express Vote Universal Voting System consists of many components; 
including but not limited to the ExpressVote Ballot Marking Device, the DS200 precinct digital 
scanner and tabulator ;  and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 123 of the Texas Elections Code states that before a voting system may 
be used in elections, the authority designated by this section, by resolution, order, or other 
official action of the authority, must adopt the system for use in the elections; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales contracts with Gonzales County for the use of the electronic 
voting systems to administer the City elections and hereby adopts and approves the use of 
such new system. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS THAT: 
 
Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the adoption of the Gonzales County 
Election System & Software, Express Vote Universal Voting System for Early Voting in 
Person, Election Day Voting and Provisional Ballots in all future elections held by the City of 
Gonzales in Gonzales County. 
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

121



 

 

 
Section 3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, any other 
documents and instruments reasonably necessary for the use of the designated voting system. 
 
Section 4. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which  this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and 
subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this 
Resolution, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 8. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, 
and it is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

122



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Ordinance #2020-3 Ordering a General 
Municipal Election to be Held on May 2, 
2020, for the Purpose of Electing One City 
Councilmember for Single Member District 
No. 3 and One City Councilmember for Single 
Member District No. 4; providing for early 
voting; providing for other matters relating to 
the election 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales is Ordering the Election for May 2, 2020.  As required by the Election 
Code the City Council is required to order the Election no later than the 78th day before the 
election.  Early Voting will be conducted April 20, 2020 at 8 a.m. and end on April 28, 2020 at 
7:00 p.m.  Two twelve hour days are required to be conducted for early voting as per Election 
Code, and will be the last two days of early voting by personal appearance as it has been in 
previous years.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
As per Chapter 3 of the Texas Election Code requires that each general and special election shall 
be ordered.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The 2019-2020 Fiscal Budget includes $6,000.00 to be expended for the general election. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this ordinance. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

123



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-3 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS ORDERING A GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 2, 2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ELECTING ONE CITY COUNCILMEMBER FOR SINGLE MEMBER DISTRICT NO. 
3 AND ONE CITY COUNCILMEMBER FOR SINGLE MEMBER DISTRICT NO. 4; 
PROVIDING FOR EARLY VOTING; PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE ELECTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That a May 2, 2019 regular election for the purpose of one City Councilmember 
for Single Member District No. 3 and one City Councilmember for Single Member District No. 4 
is hereby Ordered.   
 
This Order of Election is to be posted at the Gonzales Municipal Building on the Bulletin Board 
used for posting notices of the meetings of the City Council.   
 
Section 2. The present boundaries of the City constituting one (1) election precinct, the 
polling place for said election shall be at the Gonzales North Avenue Intermediate School, 1032 
St. Joseph Street, Gonzales, Texas.  The polls shall be open for voting from 7 a.m. until 7 p.m. 
 
Section 3. The City Secretary of the City of Gonzales shall serve as early voting clerk; the 
appointment of a deputy clerk or clerks for early voting by the City Secretary shall be in 
accordance with the law.  The early voting polling place shall be in the building that houses the 
office of the City Secretary, Gonzales Municipal Building, 820 St. Joseph Street, Gonzales, 
Texas.  The regular date and hours for early voting by personal appearance are weekdays 
Monday through Friday, except any official City holiday, 8 a.m. through 5 p.m.  Early voting by 
personal appearance for this election shall commence on April 20, 2020 at 8 a.m. and end at 7 
p.m. on April 28, 2020.  As required under Section 85.005 (d), Election Code, early voting by 
personal appearance at the main early voting polling place shall be conducted for at least 12 
hours on two (2) weekdays, if the early voting period consists of six or more weekdays; 
therefore, early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted for 12 hours on the final two 
(2) days of early voting.  The office of the City Secretary for purposes of early voting shall be 
open from 7 a.m. until 7 p.m. on the final two days of early voting by personal appearance. 
 
Section 4. The applications for voting by mail can be submitted anytime during the year of 
the election for which the ballot is requested (EC§84.007(c)) but must be received no later than 
the close of business on April 21, 2020.  Requests for applications for voting by mail should be 
mailed to the attention of the Early Voting Clerk, P.O. Box 547, Gonzales, Texas.  
 
Section 5. All ballots shall be prepared in accordance with Texas Election Code.  Paper 
ballots shall be used for early voting by mail and for provisional ballots.  The ExpessVote BMD 
with DS200 scanner shall be used for early voting by personal appearance and voting on Election 
Day.  The City Council hereby adopts for use in early voting and Election Day voting the 

124



 

 

ExpressVote BMD with DS200 Scanner as approved by the Secretary of State.  All expenditures 
necessary for the conduct of the election, the purchase of materials therefore, and the 
employment of all election officials is hereby authorized. 
 
Section 6. Proper Notice of General Election shall be posted in English and in Spanish, not 
later than the 21st day before such election at the Gonzales Municipal Building on the Bulletin 
Board used for posting notices of the meetings of the City Council; shall be delivered to the 
county election officials in which the political subdivision is located not later than the 60th day 
before its scheduled election day; and shall be published at least once, not earlier than the 30th or 
later than the 10th day before such election day in the Gonzales Inquirer, a newspaper of general 
circulation, published in the City of Gonzales. 
 
Section 7. Said election shall be held in accordance with Texas Election Code and the 
Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended. 
 
Section 8. All ordinances, or part thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters ordained herein for the period 
of time stated. 

 
Section 9. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council of the City that the 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any 
phrase, clause sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional 
by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality 
shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section.  

 
Section 10. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was adopted was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
Section 11. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED, APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE THE 13th DAY of FEBRUARY, 

2020. 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

 

125



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider and Possible Action on 
Ordinance #2020-4 Amending Sections 9.416 
General Order and 9.418 Agenda Officer of 
the City of Gonzales Code of Ordinances 

 

 

 

 
TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales adopted Chapter 9 of the Code of Ordinances in 
December 2019.   Staff would like to amend the ordinance to include or designee in Section 
9.416 and 9.418 of the code.   This would allow for the City Secretary, City Manager or Mayor 
the ability to delegate some of the posting and noticing responsibilities to whomever they deem 
fit.   
     
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the council take the action they deem necessary.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

126



 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-4 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, AMENDING SECTIONS 
9.416 GENERAL ORDER AND 9.418 AGENDA OFFICER OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES CODE OF ORDINANCES; ESTABLISHING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City that all boards, 
commissions and committees shall conduct themselves in a manner that is consistent and fair; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Chapter 9 of the Code of Ordinances in December of 
2019 to assist staff in carrying out their duties objectively, fairly and consistently; and  
 
WHEREAS, after further review city staff recommends that “or designee” be included in 
Section 9.416 and 9.418 to allow for the City Secretary, City Manager or Mayor the ability to 
delegate the posting and noticing responsibilities to whomever they deem fit; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest and welfare of the 
City to amend Sections 9.416 General Order and 9.418 Agenda Officer of the City of Gonzales 
Code of Ordinances for all boards, commissions and committees to follow.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby amends the City of 
Gonzales Code of Ordinances Sections 9.416 General Order and 9.418 Agenda Officer as set 
forth in the Attached “Exhibit A”.  
  
Section 2. That this Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of 
such ordinances, in which event the more restrictive shall apply. 

Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 6. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 

127



 

 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

Subdivision III.  Order of Business 

Sec. 9.416 General order.  

Board meetings will be generally conducted in the following order, unless otherwise necessary as 
determined by the mayor, city manager or city secretary or designee. An executive session may 
be held at any time during a meeting consistent with applicable state law.  
 

Sec. 9.418 Agenda officer.  

(a) The city secretary or designee shall be the agenda officer with responsibility for proper and 
legal posting of the agenda.  

(b) The city secretary or designee will assume responsibility for issuing to newspaper a copy of 
the agenda advising them of any scheduled meeting.  

129



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider and Possible Action on 
Ordinance #2020-5 Amending the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Gonzales, Texas, 
Chapter 6, Health And Sanitation, Article 
6.100 Garbage and Trash; and Amending the 
Rates and Fees for the Collection Services 
Contemplated Therein 

 

 

 

 
TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales Code of Ordinances currently has the garbage and trash rates codified into 
Chapter 6 of the Code.  The fee section of the Code is in need of updating and since the City is 
currently negotiating a contract for solid waste collection services it is best to amend the other 
portions of the code that are needed as well.  This amendment will repeal the existing code 
provisions and make it more in line with a new contract for the solid waste collection and bring 
the ordinance up to date.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There will not be any fiscal impact with the amendment of this Chapter of the Code of 
Ordinances.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the council take the action they deem necessary.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

130



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-5 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, 
CHAPTER 6, HEALTH AND SANITATION, ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH; 
AND AMENDING THE RATES AND FEES FOR THE COLLECTION SERVICES 
CONTEMPLATED THEREIN; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT AND 
PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR PROPER 
NOTICE AND MEETING; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR SECTIONS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas (the “City”), has previously 
adopted regulations to provide for the regulation of the accumulation of litter, solid waste, 
garbage, trash and vegetative overgrowth is injurious to the quality of life; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has evaluated the effectiveness of the regulations and 
deems it necessary to amend the City’s Code of Ordinances by amending Chapter 6, Health 
and Sanitation, Article 6.100 Garbage and Trash; and,   
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has evaluated the rates and fees charged for the 
provision of service related to solid waste collection; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that amending the City’s Code of Ordinances and Schedule 
of Rates and Fees as described herein will further promote the public health, safety, and general 
welfare of the City. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS THAT: 

 
Section 1. CODE AMENDMENT 
 
The City of Gonzales Code of Ordinances Chapter 6, Health and Sanitation, Article 6.100 
Garbage and Trash is hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, which is fully 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2. RATES AND FEES 
 
The City of Gonzales Schedule of Rates and Fees is hereby amended as set forth in the attached 
Exhibit B, which is fully incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 

131



 

 

Section 4. All ordinances or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 6. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and 
any publication required by law. 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

132



EXHIBIT A 

ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH of the City of Gonzales Code of Ordinances is 
hereby amended as follows: 

DELETE: 

ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH 

Division 1. General Provisions 

Sec. 6.101     Definitions 

For the purpose of this article the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning. 

Dry Kitchen Refuse. All solids remaining after liquids and slop have been drained off of kitchen 
garbage. 

Kitchen Garbage. All dry refuse, meat, vegetable and fruit refuse, small dead animals and dead 
fowl. 

Premises. Any business house, business establishment, grocery store, dry goods store, mercantile 
store, department store, boarding house, hotel, tourist camp, apartment house, hospital, rooming 
house, school, theaters, barbershop, beauty parlor, filling station, garage, €, restaurant, 
lumberyard, electric shop, plumbing shop, tailor shop, private residence, vacant lot, and all other 
places of business or places in the city where garbage, trash or rubbish accumulates. 

Rubbish. All tin cans, bottles, glass, scraps of iron, tin, wire or other metals, and any other 
articles to which the term rubbish is usually applied. 

Trash. Paper of all kinds, rags, old clothing, paper containers, pieces of wood, boxes, barrels, 
crates, feathers, and any other articles to which the term trash is usually applied. 

(1995 Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 50, Section 50.01) 

Sec. 6.102     Compliance with Provisions Prerequisite to Collection 

The city sanitation department shall not make collection of kitchen garbage, trash or rubbish or 
tree limbs where the same is not prepared for collection and placed as designated by the 
provisions of this article. Failure to comply herewith shall be deemed an offense and each day’s 
failure to comply will constitute a separate offense. (1995 Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 
50, Section 50.02) 

133



Sec. 6.103     Tampering with Garbage Prohibited 

It shall be unlawful for any person to meddle or tamper with any garbage can or receptacle, or 
any trash or rubbish receptacle, or with any garbage, trash or rubbish, or to in any manner pilfer 
such cans or receptacles or such garbage, trash or rubbish, or to scatter the contents thereof in 
any street, alley, sidewalk or premises in the city. (1995 Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 
50, Section 50.03) 

Sec. 6.104     Littering 

(a)     It shall be unlawful for any person to throw, drop, cast or deposit upon any street, alley, 
sidewalk, or any yard or premises, public or private, any filth of any kind, or cans, paper, trash, 
paper containers, rubbish, bottles or any other form of litter or waste matter. 

(b)      

(1)     The owner or occupant of any store or other place of business situated within the city 
shall at all times to keep his premises clean of wastepaper, wrapping paper, paper napkins, 
cartons, package containers, and other used or waste materials thrown or left on said 
premises by its customers, and take measures to prevent same drifting or blowing to 
adjoining premises. 

(2)     Receptacles of sufficient size and number shall be placed on the premises accessible 
to the customers of such business where the above referred to articles of waste may be 
disposed of. 

€     It shall be unlawful for any customer going upon the premises of another to in any manner 
dispose of wastepaper, wrapping paper, paper napkins, cartons, package containers, and other 
used or waste materials except in receptacles provided for such purposes. 

(1995 Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 50, Section 50.04) 

Secs. 6.105–6.110     Reserved 

Division 2. Collection of Garbage 

Sec. 6.111     Disposition of Heavy Accumulations Such as Brick, Lumber, and the Like 

Heavy accumulations such as brick, broken concrete, lumber, ashes, clinkers, cinders, dirt and 
plaster, sand or gravel, automobile frames, dead trees, and other bulky, heavy materials shall be 
disposed of at the expense of owner or person controlling the same. (1995 Code of Ordinances, 
Title V, Chapter 50, Section 50.30) 

134



Sec. 6.112     Disposition of Certain Wastes 

Manure from cow lots, horse stables, poultry yards, pigeon lofts, and waste oils from garages or 
filling stations shall be disposed of at the expense of the party responsible for the same. (1995 
Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 50, Section 50.31) 

Sec. 6.113     Unlawful Disposition of Trash 

It shall be unlawful to deposit garbage or trash in any receptacle belonging to another person, 
dwelling unit or establishment. (1995 Code of Ordinances, Title V, Chapter 50, Section 50.32) 

Sec. 6.114     Collection Rates 

(40) Residential Service. 

Inside City $ Month 

Trash 1X per week (cart only), w/96 gallon cart $14.80 

Recycle 1X EOW (cart only), w/96 gallon cart $14.80 

Curbside Bulky Service 4X per year per residence on call, 
maximum 5 CY per pickup 

$14.80 

Extra Carts (trash or recycle) $5.50 

Outside City   

Trash 1X per week (cart only), w/96 gallon cart $22.64 

Trash 1X per week (cart only), w/96 gallon cart $26.89 

Recycle 1X EOW (cart only), w/96 gallon cart $26.89 
 

(b)     Commercial Cart Service – Trash. 

Size 1X Xtra PU 

135



96 Cart $28.62 $8.00 
 

€     Container. 

Size Frequency Xtra PU 
 

  1X 2X 3X 4X 5X 6X   
 

2 CY 65 122 174   50 

3 CY 83 156 228   60 

4 CY 110 199 288   70 
 

6 CY 130 224 317 411 504 658 80 

8 CY 171 297 423 549 674 857 90 
 

Casters 19 each container 

Lockbars 19 each container 
 

(d)     Container Service – Recycle. 

Size EOW 1X Xtra PU 

96 Cart $10.25 $20.94 $8.00 

4 CY 66 88 70 

6 CY 78 104 80 

8 CY* 94 137 80 
 

*Only if FL Recycle Service is offered 

€     Roll-Off Service. 

  Delivery Haul & Disposal Daily Rent 

136



20 CY Open Top 159 423 $4.45 

30 CY Open Top 159 479 $4.45 

40 CY Open Top 159 503 $4.45 

Compactor Varies Varies Varies 
 

(f)     City Roll-Off Service. 

  Delivery Haul & Disposal Daily Rent 

20 CY Open Top 127 271 $3.18 

30 CY Open Top 127 424 $3.18 

40 CY Open Top 127 451 $3.18 
 

All rates above net to contractor. 

(Ordinance 2014-27 adopted 12/2/14) 

Secs. 6.115–6.120     Reserved 

ADD: 

ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH 

Division 1. General Provisions 

Sec. 6.101 Solid waste program established.  

The city's solid waste collection, transportation and disposal program is hereby established 
for all residents and businesses of the city.  
Sec. 6.102 Purpose of chapter; duties of property owners and occupants.  

The accumulation of garbage, recyclable material, rubbish, brush and other refuse 
constitutes a public nuisance, a health hazard, a fire hazard and a safety hazard. Therefore, it 
shall be required that owners and tenants of private residences, private commercial buildings and 
businesses, and the occupants of all private noncommercial buildings which accumulate refuse, 
deposit their garbage, rubbish, brush, and other refuse for removal by the agent designated by the 

137



city. Such owners, renters and occupants shall maintain the premises of the buildings and 
property free of accumulations of all other waste materials and nuisance materials. Such owners, 
renters and occupants shall not allow materials intended for recycling to create a nuisance on the 
premises of buildings and properties. All waste materials shall be disposed of in a place and by 
methods deemed appropriate by the city. The purpose of this chapter is to provide for a method 
of collecting and disposing of garbage, recyclable material, rubbish, brush, and other refuse, and 
to maintain neighborhood quality and aesthetics and maintenance of property values by 
providing for the general health and welfare.  
Sec. 6.103 Residential and commercial occupants must use services of franchisee.  

It is hereby prohibited for any individual to utilize the services of any individual or 
corporation for purposes of residential solid waste collection other than the city's designated 
solid waste franchisee. Every residential occupant and commercial establishment within the city 
shall subscribe to the services of the franchisee having the exclusive franchise for collection and 
disposal service with the city. It is declared to be unlawful for the occupant of any of the 
premises described in this section to fail or neglect to provide for the removal of solid waste as 
required under this article.  
Sec. 6.104 Defined terms.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

100-year flood means a flood that has a 1.0 percent or greater chance of recurring in any 
given year or a flood of a magnitude equaled or exceeded once in 100 years on the average over 
a significantly long period.  

Bags means plastic sacks designed to store garbage, recyclable material, rubbish, brush, or 
other refuse with sufficient wall strength to maintain physical integrity when lifted by the top. 
The total weight of a bag and its contents shall not exceed 35 pounds.  

Brush means plants or grass clippings, leaves or tree trimmings, including bags and/or 
bundles of landscape waste.  

Bulky waste means Any item not measuring in excess of either forty-eight (48) inches in 
length or fifty (50) pounds in weight, including, but not limited to, refrigerators, stoves, washing 
machines, water tanks, chairs, couches, and other similar household items with weights or 
volumes greater than those allowed for trash collection containers.  

Bundle means tree, shrub and brush trimmings or newspapers and magazines securely tied 
together forming an easily handled package not exceeding four feet in length or 50 pounds in 
weight.  

Commercial means any non-manufacturing commercial facility that generates and 
accumulates Municipal Solid Waste, Construction and Demolition Waste or Recyclable 
Materials during, or as a result of, its business, including, but not limited to, restaurants, stores, 
warehouses, hotels, motels, residential structures containing three or more dwellings, and 
residential care facilities.  

Commercial garbage means all normal establishment waste products of commercial 
buildings or establishments, including multifamily dwellings, other than single-family and 

138



duplex residential development, other than sewage and body waste, manure, dead animals over 
ten pounds in weight, special and hazardous waste, large tree trimmings, demolition or 
remodeling debris, or any other waste material that cannot be broken down to fit into commercial 
garbage containers herein specified.  

Commercial garbage compactor means all steel or metallic containers provided by the city 
or its contractor. Designed to hold compacted commercial garbage shall specifically include 20, 
30 and 40 yard compactors.  

Commercial garbage container means all steel or metallic containers, provided by the city 
or its contractor, designed to hold commercial garbage, and shall specifically include all roll-off 
containers, roll-off compaction containers, and all such containers with a volume of between 
three cubic yards and ten cubic yards.  

Commercial recycling container means all steel or metallic containers, provided by the city 
or its contractor, designed to hold recyclable material, and shall specifically include such 
containers with a volume of between six cubic yards and eight cubic yards.  

Commercial recycle material compactors means a roll off with or without a compactor 
designed to hold loose or compacted recycle. Material constructed of steel or metallic material 
provided by the city or the contractor.  

Container lease charge means a monthly charge that shall be assessed for the use of trash 
collection containers that are provided by the sanitation contractor. Said charge shall apply to 20-
cubic-yard, 30-cubic-yard, and 40-cubic-yard open-top containers.  

Dead animals means animals or portions thereof equal to or greater than ten pounds in 
weight that have expired from any cause, except those slaughtered or killed for human use.  

Designated contractor means such private firm designated by the City for the collection, 
transportation, and/or disposal of solid waste, and the collection, transportation and/or processing 
of recyclable materials.  

Extra accumulations means quantities of waste that are containerized or bundled that cannot 
be fitted into the 95-gallon residential garbage receptacle, not exceeding ten bundles of brush or 
normal bags of waste (for amounts in excess described herein refer to unusual accumulations).  

Garbage . See "commercial garbage" or "residential garbage."  
Generator means any person whose acts or processes produces or causes solid waste and/or 

recyclable materials.  
Hauler means a person, other than the designated contractor, who has obtained and 

maintains a valid permit to collect and divert recyclable materials.  
Hazardous waste means any solid waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the 

administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) pursuant to the Federal Solid 
Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 
6901 et seq., as amended.  

Landfill means facility operated by and approved by TCQ.  
Municipal solid waste or MSW means garbage, trash, refuse, brush, yard waste, and other 

waste generated in residences and commercial establishments as well as debris resulting from 

139



traffic accidents in the city (excluding wrecked or disabled vehicles which are removable by a 
wrecker service).  

Nonresident means persons residing other than within the corporate city limits.  
Nuisance means solid waste that is stored, processed or disposed of in an unsightly manner 

that causes the pollution of surrounding land, the contamination of groundwater or surface water, 
the breeding of insects or rodents, or the creation of odors adverse to human health, safety or 
welfare.  

Permitted recycle contractor means a company or corporation to transport loose or 
compacted recycle material for a manufacture or holding company for recyclable material and 
shall be in compliance with this Article.  

Person means any person, firm, corporation, business trust, partnership, association, 
organization or municipal entity, incorporated or unincorporated, other than the city.  

Premises means all public and private establishments, including individual residences, all 
multifamily dwellings, residential care facilities, hospitals, schools, businesses, other buildings 
and all vacant lots.  

Provider means entity providing solid waste collection and disposal services.  
Recyclable material means any material, substance or byproduct that has been recovered or 

diverted from the non-hazardous waste stream for purposes of reuse, recycling or reclamation, 
and is any material or product designated in writing by the city's director of public works or his 
or her designee as being suitable for reuse, recycling or reclamation.  

Recycle means to collect, buy, sell, and store and/or produce any material, substance or 
product from waste material or byproducts and to keep such from being included in the waste 
stream intended for disposal.  

Refuse means all solid waste except hazardous wastes.  
Residential garbage means all normal waste products of single-family and duplex residential 

development, other than sewage and body waste, manure, dead animals over ten pounds in 
weight, special and hazardous waste, large tree trimmings, demolition or remodeling debris, or 
any other waste material that cannot be broken down to fit into residential garbage receptacles 
herein specified.  

Residential garbage receptacle means a plastic or metal receptacle, designed for automated 
or semi-automated solid waste collection systems, and having a tight fitting lid capable of 
preventing littering and the entrance into the container by small animals. The weight of the 
receptacle and its contents shall not exceed 75 pounds and shall be designed for ease of 
movement and use. One receptacle shall be provided in designated areas unless customer wants 
to pay for each additional container, with ownership of the receptacle retained by the contractor.  

Residential recycling receptacle means a plastic receptacle provided by the city or its 
contractor, designed for automated or semi-automated recyclable material collection systems, 
and having a tight fitting lid capable of preventing littering and the entrance into the container by 
small animals. The weight of the receptacle and its contents shall not exceed 75 pounds and shall 
be designed for ease of movement and use. A receptacle shall be provided in designated areas, 
with ownership of the receptacle retained by the contractor.  

140



Residents means persons residing within the corporate limits of the city.  
Rubbish means any nonputrescible solid waste, including aluminum cans, paper, boxes, 

glass, yard trimmings, leaves, feathers and any other matter commonly understood to be rubbish.  
Solid waste means garbage, rubbish, refuse, sludge from a wastewater treatment plant, water 

supply treatment plant or air pollution control facility, and other discarded material, including 
solid, liquid, semi-solid or contained gaseous material resulting from industrial, municipal, 
commercial, mining and agricultural operations and from community and institutional activities. 
The term does not include:  

(1) Solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved material in 
irrigation return flows, or industrial discharges subject to regulation by permit issued 
under V.T.C.A. Water Code, Ch. 26, as amended;  

(2)  Soil, dirt, rock, sand or other natural or manmade inert solid materials used to fill land if 
the object of the fill is to make the land suitable for the construction of surface 
improvements; or  

(3) Waste materials that result from activities associated with the exploration, development 
or production of oil or gas or geothermal resources and other substance or material 
regulated by the Railroad Commission of Texas under V.T.C.A. Natural Resources 
Code, Chapter 91, as amended, unless the waste, substance or material results from 
activities associated with gasoline plants, natural gas liquids processing plants, pressure 
maintenance plants or re-pressurizing plants and is hazardous waste as defined by the 
administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency under the Federal 
Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.).  

(4)  Recyclable material; however, recyclable material may become solid waste at such time, 
if any, as it is abandoned or disposed of as other solid waste, rather than recycled, 
whereupon it will be solid waste with respect only to the party actually abandoning or 
disposing of the material.  

Special waste means solid waste or a combination of wastes that, because of its quantity, 
concentration, physical or chemical characteristics or biological properties, requires special 
handling and disposal to protect the human health or the environment. If improperly handled, 
transported, stored, processed or disposed of or otherwise managed, it may pose a present or 
potential danger to human health or the environment. Special waste includes, but is not limited 
to:  

(1) Hazardous waste from conditionally exempt small-quantity generators that may be 
exempt from full controls under 30 V.T.C.A. Texas Administrative Code §§ 335.401—
335.419, as amended, relating to household materials which could be classified as 
hazardous waste;  

(2)  Class I industrial nonhazardous waste not routinely collected with municipal solid 
waste;  

(3)  Special waste from health-care-related facilities (refers to certain items of medical 
waste);  

141



(4)  Municipal wastewater treatment plant sludge's, other types of domestic sewage 
treatment plant sludge's, and water-supply treatment plant sludge's;  

(5)  Septic tank pumpings;  
(6)  Grease and grit trap wastes;  
(7)  Wastes from commercial or industrial wastewater treatment plants, air pollution control 

facilities, and tanks, drums, or containers used for shipping or storing any material that 
has been listed as a hazardous constituent in 40 C.F.R. Ch. 261, Appendix VIII, as 
amended, but has not been listed as a commercial chemical product in 40 C.F.R. § 
261.33(e) or (f), as amended;  

(8)  Slaughterhouse wastes;  
(9)  Dead animals;  
(10)  Drugs, contaminated foods, or contaminated beverages, other than those contained in 

normal household waste;  
(11)  Pesticide (insecticide, herbicide, fungicide, or rodenticide) containers;  
(12)  Discarded materials containing asbestos;  
(13)  Incinerator ash;  
(14)  Soil contaminated by petroleum products, crude oils, or chemicals;  
(15)  Used oil;  
(16)  Light ballasts and/or small capacitors containing polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) 

compounds;  
(17)  Waste from oil, gas, and geothermal activities subject to regulation by the state 

railroad commission when those wastes are to be processed, treated, or disposed of at a 
solid waste management facility permitted under this chapter;  

(18)  Waste generated outside the boundaries of the state that contains:  
a.  Any industrial waste;  
b.  Any waste associated with oil, gas and geothermal exploration, production or 

development activities; or  
c.  Any item listed as a special waste in this definition;  

(19)  Any waste stream other than household or commercial garbage, refuse or rubbish;  
(20)  Lead acid storage batteries; and  
(21)  Used-oil filters from internal combustion engines.  
Unusual accumulations means:  
(1)  For residences, each regular collection that cannot fit into a residential garbage 

receptacle;  
(2)  For commercial establishments, accumulations that would not occur in the ordinary 

course of business;  

142



(3)  Bulky waste;  
(4)  Materials judged by the director of public works or his duly appointed representative 

to be hazardous, such as oil, acid or caustic materials; and  
(5)  Existing conditions favorable to the harboring and/or breeding of any agent, such as an 

insect, reptile, rodent or other agents capable of transferring a pathogen from one 
organism to another.  

Sec. 6.105 Sanitation service deposits and fees.  

Deposits and fees are as specified in the Master Rates and Fee Schedule adopted by the City 
Council and on file with the City Secretary which may be amended from time to time shall be 
required of all customers requesting the collection and disposal of refuse by the city's designated 
contractor. All utility customers shall receive solid waste and recyclable material collection 
service. The charges for collection service shall be included on the monthly utility bill of the 
customer. For partial months, such charges shall be prorated for each and every day of the month 
during which such service is available and provided to the residential customers. An increase in 
monthly fees may be made upon approval of the city council. A penalty for overdue payment of 
the monthly utility bill may be charged.  
Sec. 6.106 Garbage, recyclable material, rubbish, brush and refuse nuisances.  

The storing or keeping of garbage, rubbish, brush, refuse and/or recyclable material that is 
unsightly or a health, fire or safety hazard or a harbor for reptiles, rodents, insects, or other 
animals is prohibited and shall constitute a public nuisance. Removal of all such materials is the 
owner's responsibility and shall be done at the owner's expense.  
Sec. 6.107 Dumping.  

Dumping of any garbage, solid waste, recyclable material, rubbish, brush and/or other refuse 
in any place and in any manner other than that designated in this chapter is prohibited.  
Sec. 6.108 Collection containers and receptacles for garbage, trash, and recyclable 
material.  

(a)  Every owner, tenant, occupant or lessee using or occupying any building, house, or 
structure within the corporate city limits of the City for residential, church, school, 
commercial, business or other purpose shall use a collection container that is only in 
designated areas or receptacle authorized by this article provided by the city, its designated 
contractor, or a hauler. All garbage and trash mixed with water or other liquids shall be 
drained before being placed in the collection container or receptacle.  

(b)  Every owner, tenant, occupant or lessee using or occupying any building, house or 
structure within the corporate city limits of the City of Schertz for residential, church, 
school, commercial, business or other purpose shall notify the city of any loss, theft or 
damage to the collection container or receptacle and shall be responsible for replacement 
costs unless the damage is a result of collection by contractor.  

(c)  It shall be the duty of every residential customer to keep the residential garbage and 
recycling receptacle in a clean and sanitary condition.  

143



(d)  Except when placed for collection, residential garbage and recycling receptacles shall be 
stored behind the front building line if collection occurs from a public street, or stored 
adjacent to the main structure if collection occurs from an alley. Commercial collection 
containers or receptacles shall be kept in a screened area, unless such requirement is waived 
by the director of public works or his duly appointed representative.  

(e)  Brush that cannot fit into the residential garbage receptacle shall be tied in bundles not to 
exceed four feet in length with no limbs exceeding six inches in diameter. Bundles of brush 
shall be comparable in size and weight with bags of garbage, not to exceed 50 pounds each.  

(f)  The city manager or his designated representative shall cause regular inspections to be 
made to ensure compliance with the terms of this section, and if any unsanitary collection 
container or receptacle is found, a notice shall be placed upon such collection container or 
receptacle informing the owner to clean the same within five days. Failure to comply with 
such notice shall constitute a violation of this section.  

Sec. 6.109 Residential collection regulations.  

(a)  There shall be solid waste collection once weekly, once every other week for recyclable 
items, and as scheduled in designated areas for bulky waste.  

(b)  It shall be the duty of the owner, occupant, tenant or lessee of a residence, commercial 
establishment or other building to place the garbage or recyclable material in proper 
receptacles at the curb line or at the alley most accessible to the collection crew vehicle as 
determined by the contractor and the director of public works or his duly appointed 
representative.  

(c)  Garbage and recyclable material shall not be placed at the point of collection before 6:00 
p.m. prior to the designated day of collection and any garbage receptacles or recycling 
receptacles shall be removed within 24 hours from the point of collection and stored in 
accordance with this Article.  

(d)  Unusual accumulations, brush or bulky wastes shall not be placed for regular garbage 
pickup. Removal of unusual accumulations, brush or bulky wastes may be requested for a 
special collection, and there shall be an additional fee for such service as determined from 
time to time by city council. The city shall be the authority to determine what constitutes 
unusual accumulations if there is a difference of opinion between a customer and the 
contractor.  

(e)  Materials intended for recycling shall not be placed for collection with waste materials. 
Recycling collection activities are to be separate from garbage collection activities.  

(f)  It shall be the duty of the owner, occupant, tenant or lessee of any premises to report the 
failure to collect properly prepared property garbage and recyclable material for a 
consecutive period of two weeks to the city where the holder of a franchise granted by the 
city is responsible for such collection; and if the owner, occupant, tenant or lessee elects to 
regularly remove garbage and recyclable material from his premises, it shall be unlawful for 
such owner, occupant, tenant or lessee to remove such accumulation less often than required 
under this section.  

(g)  All putrescible waste must be placed in the residential garbage receptacles.  

144



(h)  From the time of placement of solid waste and of recyclable material at the point of 
collection by the owner, occupant, tenant or lessee of a residence for collection in 
accordance herewith, such solid waste and recyclable material shall be delivered by the 
designated contractor, as specified in section 34-60, to the appropriate facility for disposition 
pursuant to contract with the city.  

Sec. 6.110 Residential collection fees.  

(a)  For the collection and removal of solid waste and brush in a residential garbage receptacle 
and collection of recyclables in a residential recycling receptacle once a week, a monthly 
charge shall be as determined from time to time by the city council.  

(b)  For each additional residential garbage receptacle, or residential recycling receptacle, the 
monthly charge shall be as determined from time to time by the city council.  

(c)  For the collection of unusual accumulations, there shall be a fee as determined from time to 
time by the city council.  

(d)  For other solid waste collection or disposal services not listed, the city and contractor shall 
work together to determine a reasonable fee, pending council approval of the fee within 60 
days.  

Sec. 6.111 Commercial collection regulations.  

(a)  Collection containers commonly used by commercial garbage and recycling collectors, 
including residential garbage and recycling receptacles (for commercial use), shall be placed 
at a location on the premises mutually agreeable to the customer, the city, and its designated 
contractor. The director of public works or his duly appointed representative may authorize 
the use by a commercial customer of residential garbage or recycling receptacles on a case 
by case basis after the commercial customer makes request for use of such residential 
receptacles. The collection and removal of garbage and recyclable material from buildings 
and premises used for commercial and institutional purposes shall not be made less than one 
time per week and as often as necessary in order to maintain such premises free of 
accumulations of garbage, trash and brush. Materials for recycling shall not be placed for 
collection with waste materials. Recycling collection activities shall be separate from 
garbage collection activities. A commercial business shall be responsible for the collection 
and lawful disposal of hazardous waste generated by that commercial business.  

(b)  From the time of placement of solid waste and of recyclable material at the point of 
collection by the commercial business for collection in accordance herewith, such solid 
waste and recyclable material shall be delivered by the designated contractor to the 
appropriate facility for disposition pursuant to contract with the city.  

Sec. 6.112 Commercial collection fees.  

The service charge for commercial collections shall be based on the frequency of collection 
necessary and the amount regularly collected.  
(a)  Minimum service level . The minimum service level is one 96 Gallon garbage collection 

container picked up one time a week and one recyclable material collection container picked 
up once every other week for a fee as determined from time to time by the city council. 

145



Additional collection containers can be requested for an additional fee as determined from 
time to time by the city council. The property owner is responsible for replacement of the 
collection containers in the case of theft, loss, or damage. There shall be a fee as determined 
from time to time by the city council charged for collections of unusual accumulations.  

(b)  Other solid waste collection and disposal services . For other solid waste collection or 
disposal services not listed, the city and contractor shall work together to determine a 
reasonable fee, pending city council approval of the fee within 60 days.  

(c)  Service charges for additional services shall be by customer agreement with the contractor.  
Sec. 6.113 Collection and disposal of commercial garbage and recyclable material in central 
business district.  

(a)  The disposal of commercial garbage, recyclable material, rubbish and brush by placing the 
same in public trash receptacles located on public streets in the city is prohibited. The 
collection and removal of garbage, recyclable material, rubbish, and brush from buildings 
and premises used for commercial or institutional purposes shall be made not less than one 
times per week and as often as necessary in order to maintain such premises free of 
accumulations of garbage, trash and brush.  

(b)  Fee charges for private haulers of recyclable materials shall be by customer agreement.  
(c)  No annual private haul vehicle will apply using the authorized solid waste & recycle 

franchise hauler.  
Sec. 6.114 Collection contractor.  

(a)  The city shall designate a contractor to regularly collect and remove all garbage, recyclable 
material, rubbish, and solid waste, excluding hazardous waste, from all premises within the 
corporate city limits. This agent shall operate by contract with the city. The city manager 
shall take action to see that the terms of the contract are fulfilled. In the event of any conflict 
between the terms of the contract and the city's ordinances on the collection of solid waste, 
the ordinances shall control. The designated collection contractor shall not be responsible for 
the collection of hazardous waste except.  

(b)  In the event that the designated collection contractor lacks adequate and/or appropriate 
resources to collect and remove solid waste from public improvement projects, the director 
of public works may authorize solid waste removal by another contractor.  

Sec. 6.115 Disposal of solid waste.  

(a)  Individual residents may remove garbage, recyclable material, rubbish, brush or unusual 
accumulations from their own residences, provided that the garbage, recyclable material, 
rubbish, brush or unusual accumulations are secured.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the business of collecting solid waste 
within the city except as may be specifically authorized by contract with the city and the 
payment of a license fee to so operate.  

(c)  It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the business of collecting solid waste 
within the city except as may be specifically authorized in accordance with this article.  

146



Sec. 6.116 Prohibited acts.  

(a)  Pilfering, scattering contents or meddling with garbage, recyclables, rubbish, or collection 
containers or receptacles by any person other than the owner, occupant or authorized agent 
is prohibited.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit any burning match, charcoal, ember or other 
burning material in any collection container or receptacle used for the disposal of garbage, 
recyclable material, rubbish, or brush.  

(c)  It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit any materials not included in the definitions 
of garbage, recyclable material, rubbish and brush in any collection container or receptacle 
used for the disposal of garbage, recyclable material, or rubbish.  

(d)  It shall be unlawful for any unauthorized person, other than the commercial customer or its 
employees or agents, to deposit any materials in a commercial collection container or 
receptacle.  

(e)  It shall be unlawful to deposit solid waste generated from within the corporate city limits in 
any place other than a landfill unless authorized by the executive director of public works or 
his duly appointed representative.  

(f)  It shall be unlawful to store or place in a screening enclosure that is provided for garbage 
and/or recycling containers and/or receptacles any debris, solid waste or any other item for 
storage that is not a solid waste and/or a recycling container and/or receptacle.  

(g)  It shall be unlawful to bring in waste for disposal from outside of City limits.  
Sec. 6.117 Diversion of recyclable materials.  

(a)  Individual residents may remove recyclable material from their own residences; provided 
that the recyclable materials are secured.  

(b)  It shall be unlawful for any person, including, without limitation, a resident or commercial 
business customer, to cause a diversion of recyclable materials at any location in violation of 
state law.  

(c)  No person, including, without limitation, a resident or commercial business customer, may 
contract for the diversion of recyclable materials with any contractor other than the 
designated contractor of the City.  

Sec. 6.118 Wastes from tree-trimming operations.  

It shall be the duty of any person employing a contractor, tree-trimmer, or other person to 
trim or prune trees or shrubs to have said trimmings removed from the premises at his own 
expense.  
Sec. 6.119 Applicability of state law.  

The provisions of this article are adopted under V.T.C.A., Health and Safety Code Ch. 361.  
The regulations promulgated in this article cover all aspects of municipal solid waste 
management under the authority of the state and are based primarily on the stated purpose of 
V.T.C.A. Health and Safety Code Ch. 361, as amended, hereafter referred to as the Texas 

147



Solid Waste Disposal Act. The owner or operator of a municipal solid waste landfill 
(MSWLF) facility shall comply with any other applicable federal rules, laws, regulations or 
other requirements.  

Sec. 6.120 Enforcement.  

The provisions of this article shall be enforced by the director of public works or his duly 
appointed representative, and it shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with or hinder the 
director of public works or his duly appointed representative in the exercise of his duties under 
this article. Notwithstanding any provisions contained herein to the contrary, the director of 
public works or his duly appointed representative are hereby granted the authority to issue 
immediate citations to persons violating any provision of this article.  
Sec. 6.121 Offense.  

(a)  Any person violating or failing to comply with any provision or requirement of this article, 
who continues to violate or fails to comply with same, shall also be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount not to exceed 
$2,000.00, such offenses listed herein being violations of the health and safety ordinance of 
the city. A separate offense shall be deemed committed upon each day during or on which a 
violation or failure to comply occurs or continues to occur. This section shall be in addition 
to and cumulative of the provisions for abatement by the city of any nuisance created by the 
violation of this article and the charging of the cost of abatement of said nuisance against the 
owner of the property.  

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any violation of any provision of this article which 
constitutes an immediate danger or threat to the health, safety and welfare of the public may 
be enjoined in a suit brought by the city for such purpose.  

(c)  In addition to any other remedies or penalties contained herein, the city may enforce the 
provisions of this article pursuant to the applicable provisions of V.T.C.A. Local 
Government Code ch.54, which chapter provides for the enforcement of municipal 
ordinances.  

(d)  Allegation and evidence of a culpable mental state is not required for the proof of an 
offense defined by this article.  

 

Sec. 6.122-140 Reserved 

RENUMBERED: 

Division 2 Brush Collection 

Sec. 6.141     Definition 

148



Brush. Trees and shrubs on premises will be picked up by the city. Brush shall not include trash, 
garbage, yard trimmings, leaves, lumber or any other debris. Nor does the service include the 
removal of trees and brush which has resulted from the clearing of land by heavy equipment, i.e. 
bulldozers etc. 

Sec. 6.142     Brush Parameters 

Brush shall be processed in manageable sizes. Any trunk or limb exceeding eight inches (8") in 
diameter shall be cut into a manageable size of four (4) foot or less. No single branch shall 
exceed forty (40) pounds in weight and shall be processed in a manageable size. 

Sec. 6.143     Frequency of Collection 

Brush pickup service shall be provided to each applicable residential and business premises 
weekly whether the brush or trimmings or cut by the resident or a professional tree trimming 
service as long as the resident pays brush pick-up fees. In the interest of ensuring brush 
collection for the entire city in a timely manner, the brush department shall not normally deviate 
from the established routes. Each neighborhood within the city limits has a designated brush pick 
up day. No collection of brush shall be made on Saturday, Sunday or holidays observed by the 
city. Brush shall be placed at the curbside in a manageable pile no later than 7:00 a.m. on the 
designated scheduled collection day. 

Sec. 6.144     Location of Collection 

Brush shall be placed at the customer’s curbline. Brush will be picked up at no other location, 
and in no case shall brush department crews enter private property to cut or remove brush and 
debris. 

Sec. 6.145     Charges for Brush Collection 

There shall be charged, assessed, and collected from each person, firm, or corporation within the 
city limits for brush collection and disposal at the rates set out to-wit: 

A fee of five (5) dollars will be charged each month where actual loading time is not more than 
fifteen (15) minutes per pick-up. In the event the city’s designated brush department 
representative estimates that the time required for removal of brush from a particular residence or 
commercial business will exceed fifteen (15) minutes in duration, additional charges shall be 
levied to cover the cost of city work hours and equipment. A time limit of one hour per residence 
per week is preferred. Subsequent to the removal of brush from the customer’s premises, the 
city’s representative shall determine the actual work time taken, and a corresponding charge shall 

149



be levied on the customer’s utility bill of $20.00 for each additional fifteen (15) minute period of 
actual work time required for brush removal. Charges shall not be prorated for periods of less 
than fifteen (15) minutes. 

Sec. 6.146-150 Reserved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

150



EXHIBIT B 

THE CITY OF GONZALES RATES AND FEES SCHEDULE IS HEREBY AMENDED 
AS FOLLOWS: 

A. Single-Family Residential Unit Services.  For the Services provided to Single-Family 
Residential Units under Section 4.A. and 7.A. hereof that are located within the City's corporate 
limits and billed by the City for water and sewer services, the Service Provider shall charge the 
following rates per month for each Single-Family Residential Unit utilizing one (1) Roll-Out for 
the collection of Municipal Solid Waste and one (1) Roll-Out for the collection of Recyclable 
Materials, plus the following additional amounts per month for each additional Roll-Out utilized 
by such Single-Family Residential Unit.     

 Monthly Rate – One (1) Roll-
Out for Municipal Solid Waste 

and one (1) Roll-Out for 
Recyclable Materials 

Monthly Rate – Each 
Additional Roll-Out 

Contract Year 1 $12.95 $5.75 

Contract Year 2 $12.95 $5.75 

Contract Year 3 $13.34 $5.92 

Contract Year 4 $13.74 $6.10 

Contract Year 5 $14.15 $6.28 

 

For the Services provided to Single-Family Residential Units under Section 4.A. and 7.A. hereof 
that are located within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction, but not within the City’s corporate 
limits, the Service Provider shall charge the following rates per month for each Single-Family 
Residential Unit utilizing one Roll-Out, plus the following rates per month for each Single-
Family Residential Unit utilizing one Roll-Out and receiving recycling services every other 
week, plus the following additional amounts per month for each additional Roll-Out utilized by 
such Single-Family Residential Unit. 

 Monthly Rate – One (1) 
Roll-Out (No Recycle) 

Monthly Rate – One (1) 
Roll-Out & EOW Recycle 

Monthly Rate – Each 
Additional Roll-Out 

Contract Year 1 $15.00 $25.00 $5.75 

Contract Year 2 $15.00 $25.00 $5.75 

151



Contract Year 3 $15.45 $25.75 $5.92 

Contract Year 4 $15.91 $26.52 $6.10 

Contract Year 5 $16.39 $27.32 $6.28 

 

Any Single-Family Residential Unit, whether located within the City’s corporate limits or 
extraterritorial jurisdiction, that needs the replacement of any Roll-Out that is lost, stolen, 
damaged or destroyed by the Single-Family Residential Unit will be charged $60.00 for the cost 
of such Roll-Out, plus a $25.00 delivery fee. 

B. Commercial Hand Collect Unit Services.  For the Services provided to Commercial Hand 
Collect Units under Section 4.B. hereof, the Service Provider shall charge per month the 
following rates, and the following rate for each extra pickup: 

  

 Monthly Rate 
For One (1) Roll-

Out 

Rate Per Extra 
Pickup or 

additional Roll-
Out 

Contract Year 1 $30.00 $15.00 

Contract Year 2 $30.00 $15.00 

Contract Year 3 $30.90 $15.45 

Contract Year 4 $31.83 $15.91 

Contract Year 5 $32.79 $16.39 

  

Any Commercial Hand Collect Unit that needs the replacement of any Roll-Out that is lost, 
stolen, or damaged or destroyed by the Commercial Hand Collect Unit will be charged $60.00 
for the cost of such Roll-Out, plus a $25.00 delivery fee. 

These rates apply to all Commercial Hand Collect Units that are located within the City's 
corporate limits and/or extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

 

152



C. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Residential Unit Services.  For the Services 
provided to Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Residential Units under Section 5 hereof, 
the Service Provider shall charge per month for each Container utilized the rates located on 
Exhibit B. 

D. Roll-Off Services.  Subject to adjustment by the Service Provider in its sole discretion, 
for the Services provided under Sections 7 and 11 hereto, the Service Provider shall charge for 
each Roll-Off utilized by a Commercial, Industrial or Residential Unit the fees located on 
Exhibit B. 

The Service Provider will negotiate agreements with each Commercial, Industrial or Residential 
Units on an individual basis regarding the Roll-Off Services to be provided.  The Roll-Off 
Services will be billed directly to such Commercial, Industrial or Residential Unit and will be 
collected by the Service Provider.  The Roll-Offs provided pursuant to this Section 9.C. must be 
located within the City in accordance with City ordinances and policies.   
 
E. City Roll-Off Services.  For the Roll-Off services provided to the City in addition to or in 
excess of those provided for at no charge under Section 6.B. hereof, the Service Provider shall 
bill the City for each Roll-Off utilized the rates located on Exhibit B.  
 
COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL UNIT RATES  

CONTRACT YEARS 1 & 2 

Container 
Size 

Frequency – Monthly Rates  
1x 2x 3x 4x 5x 6x Rate per 

extra 
pickup 

2 CY $71.25 133.00 $190.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35.63 
3 CY $90.25 $170.05 $248.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45.13 
4 CY $119.70 $216.60 $313.50 $410.40 $0.00 $0.00 $59.85 
6 CY $141.55 $244.15 $345.80 $448.00 $549.10 $717.25 $70.78 
8CY $186.20 $323.95 $460.75 $598.50 $734.35 $933.85 $93.10 
Casters $22.00 each container/month     
Lockbars $22.00 each container/month     

 

Container Service – Recvcle 
Size EOW (Every other 

week) – Monthly Rate 
1X – 
Monthly 
Rate 

Rate per 
extra 
pickup 

96 Cart $10.00 $20.00 $10.00 
4 CY $76.00 $152.00 $76.00 
6 CY $90.00 $180.00 $90.00 
8 CY $108.00 $216.00 $108.00 

153



 

CONTRACT YEAR 3 

Container 
Size 

Frequency – Monthly Rates  
1x 2x 3x 4x 5x 6x Rate per 

extra 
pickup 

2 CY $73.38 136.99 $195.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $63.61 
3 CY $92.96 $175.15 $256.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $82.19 
4 CY $123.29 $223.10 $322.91 $422.71 $0.00 $0.00 $99.81 
6 CY $145.80 $251.47 $356.17 $461.44 $565.57 $738.77 $105.67 
8CY $191.79 $333.67 $474.57 $616.46 $756.38 $961.87 $141.88 
Casters $22.66 each container/month     
Lockbars $22.66 each container/month     

 

Container Service – Recvcle 
ContainerSi
ze 

EOW (Every other 
week) – Monthly Rate 

1X – 
Monthly 
Rate 

Rate per 
extra 
pickup 

96 Cart $10.30 $20.60 $10.30 
4 CY $78.28 $156.56 $78.28 
6 CY $92.70 $185.40 $92.70 
8 CY $111.24 $222.48 $111.24 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 4 

ContainerSi
ze 

Frequency – Monthly Rates  
1x 2x 3x 4x 5x 6x Rate per 

extra 
pickup 

2 CY $75.58 141.10 $201.57 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $65.52 
3 CY $95.75 $180.40 $264.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84.65 
4 CY $126.99 $229.79 $332.60 $435.39 $0.00 $0.00 $102.80 
6 CY $150.17 $259.01 $366.86 $475.28 $582.54 $760.93 $108.84 
8CY $197.54 $343.68 $488.81 $634.95 $779.07 $990.73 $146.14 
Casters $23.34 each container/month     
Lockbars $23.34 each container/month     

 

Container Service – Recvcle 
Size EOW (Every other 

week) – Monthly Rate 
1X – 
Monthly 
Rate 

Rate per 
extra 
pickup 

96 Cart $10.61 $21.22 $10.61 

154



4 CY $80.63 $161.26 $80.63 
6 CY $95.48 $190.96 $95.48 
8 CY $114.58 $229.15 $114.58 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 5 

 

Container 
Size 

Frequency – Monthly Rate  
1x 2x 3x 4x 5x 6x Rate per 

extra 
pickup 

2 CY $77.85 145.33 $207.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $67.48 
3 CY $98.62 $185.81 $271.98 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $87.19 
4 CY $130.80 $236.68 $342.58 $448.45 $0.00 $0.00 $105.88 
6 CY $154.68 $266.78 $377.87 $489.54 $600.02 $783.76 $112.10 
8CY $203.47 $353.99 $503.47 $654.00 $802.44 $1020.45 $150.52 
Casters $24.04 each container/month     
Lockbars $24.04 each container/month     

 

Container Service – Recvcle 
Size EOW (Every other 

week) – Monthly Rate 
1X – 
Monthly 
Rate 

Rate per 
extra 
pickup 

96 Cart $10.92 $21.86 $10.92 
4 CY $83.05 $166.10 $83.05 
6 CY $98.34 $196.69 $98.34 
8 CY $118.02 $236.02 $118.02 

155



ROLL-OFF RATES  

CONTRACT YEARS 1 & 2 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $172.90 $460.75 $4.00 

30 Cubic Yards $172.90 $522.50 $4.00 

40 Cubic Yards $172.90 $548.15 $4.00 

Compactor negotiable $600.00 Negotiable 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 3 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $178.09 $474.57 $4.12 

30 Cubic Yards $178.09 $538.18 $4.12 

40 Cubic Yards $178.09 $564.59 $4.12 

Compactor negotiable $618.00 Negotiable 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 4 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $183.43 $488.81 $4.24 

30 Cubic Yards $183.43 $554.33 $4.24 

40 Cubic Yards $183.43 $581.53 $4.24 

Compactor negotiable $636.54 Negotiable 

 

156



CONTRACT YEAR 5 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $188.93 $503.47 $4.37 

30 Cubic Yards $188.93 $570.96 $4.37 

40 Cubic Yards $188.93 $598.98 $4.37 

Compactor negotiable $655.64 negotiable 

 

CITY ROLL-OFF RATES  

CONTRACT YEARS 1 & 2 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $0 $295.45 $0 

30 Cubic Yards $0 $462.65 $0 

40 Cubic Yards $0 $492.10 $0 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 3 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $0 $304.31 $0 

30 Cubic Yards $0 $476.53 $0 

40 Cubic Yards $0 $506.86 $0 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 4 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $0 $313.44 $0 

30 Cubic Yards $0 $490.83 $0 

157



40 Cubic Yards $0 $522.07 $0 

 

CONTRACT YEAR 5 

Container Size Delivery Fee Haul & Disposal Fee Daily Rent 

20 Cubic Yards $0 $322.84 $0 

30 Cubic Yards $0 $505.56 $0 

40 Cubic Yards $0 $537.73 $0 

 

 

 

158



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: February 13, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-26 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute an Agreement with 
Frontier Access, LLC (Frontier Waste 
Solutions) for Solid Waste Collection and 
Disposal Services  
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On October 17, 2019, a Letter of Intent to Terminate Contract with Texas Disposal Systems, Inc. 
was sent to Mr. James Griffin, Municipal House Accounts Representative.  This letter notified 
Texas Disposal Systems, Inc. of the City of Gonzales intent to terminate the contract as per 
section 7.3 of the agreement for Municipal Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Service 
executed on February 15, 2015. 
 
The RFP was posted to the City of Gonzales Website on December 3, 2019, and published in the 
paper (Inquirer) and TML website on December 5, 2019 with proposals originally due on 
December 20, 2019 at 2:00 P.M., but an Addendum was done on December 12, 2019 which 
modified the new proposal deadline to December 31, 2019 at 2:00 P.M.   The City of Gonzales 
received (5) five responses to the RFP.  The (5) five proposals received were from Frontier 
Waste Solutions, Waste Connections, Texas Disposal Systems, Tiger Sanitation and Republic 
Services.  On December 31, 2019, and January 2, 2020, City staff met, reviewed and evaluated 
proposals based on price, quality of service and previous performance.       
 
City Staff is requesting City Council decision regarding the Solid Waste Collection and Disposal 
Services.  Staff is requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Frontier Access, LLC 
(Frontier Waste Solutions) for four (4) years and seven (7) months, commencing on March 1, 
2020 and concluding on September 30, 2024.   At the expiration of the Initial Term of this 
Agreement, the Agreement may be extended for up to three successive terms of five (5) years. 
The Service Provider shall provide to the City with written notice of its intent to renew this 
Agreement for an additional five year term at least 120 days prior to the expiration date of the 
Initial Term or 120 days prior to any of the then applicable individual five-year extension 
periods. If the City does not provide such written approval to renew the Agreement within thirty 
(30) days of such request from the Service Provider, this Agreement will terminate at the end of 
either this Initial Term, or at the end of any subsequent five (5) year extension period, as 
applicable. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with what has been done in the past.  
 

159



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Account #240-7-740.807 Contract Solid Waste Fees has $685k allocated in the Solid Waste 
Fund 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget. Cost savings for the first year is approximately 
$181,948.64.00.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Agreement from Frontier Access, LLC (Frontier Waste Solutions)       
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends City Council take the action they deem appropriate.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

160



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-26 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
FRONTIER ACCESS, LLC (FRONTIER WASTE SOLUTIONS) FOR SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, on October 17, 2019 the City of Gonzales issued a Letter of Intenet to Terminate 
the Contract with Texas Disposal Systems, Inc. as per the requirements of Section 7.3 of the 
agreement for Municipal Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Services; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the advertisements for the Request for Proposals were published in the newspaper 
as per Chapter 252 of the Local Government Code for two consecutive weeks beginning 
December 5, 2019; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposals were due to be received by the City of Gonzales on December 20, 
2019 at 2:00 p.m. with an addendum to modify the proposal deadline to December 31, 2019 at 
2:00 p.m.; and, 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received from Frontier Waste Solutions, Waste Connections, Texas 
Disposal Systems, Tiger Sanitation and Republic Services by the due date published; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that entering into an agreement with Frontier Access, LLC 
(Frontier Waste Solutions) for Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Services is in the best 
interest of the City and its citizens and will further promote the public health, safety, and 
general welfare of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the City Manager to 
execute an agreement with Frontier Access, LLC (Frontier Waste Solutions) for Solid Waste 
Collection and Disposal Services. 
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

161



 

 

 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of February, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

 
 

162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181


	2.5 (b) CPS-BUYBOARD1.doc CITY OF GONZALES -2020 CHEVROLET 1500 SILVERADO 4X2 REGULAR CAB LWB CC10903-1X-APRIL25.pdf
	Email:chris@caldwellcountry.com aknapp@caldwellcountry.com

	2.5 (c) CPS-BUYBOARD1.doc GONZALES -2020 CHEVROLET 2500HD SILVERADO 4X2 DOUBLE CAB 4DR SWB CC20753-1X-JANUARY22.pdf
	Email: aknapp@caldwellcountry.com

	4.3 (b) Article 6.100 Garbage and Trash.DNRBZ.020720.pdf
	EXHIBIT A
	ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH of the City of Gonzales Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows:
	DELETE:
	ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH
	Division 1. General Provisions
	Sec. 6.101     Definitions
	Sec. 6.102     Compliance with Provisions Prerequisite to Collection
	Sec. 6.103     Tampering with Garbage Prohibited
	Sec. 6.104     Littering
	Secs. 6.105–6.110     Reserved

	Division 2. Collection of Garbage
	Sec. 6.111     Disposition of Heavy Accumulations Such as Brick, Lumber, and the Like
	Sec. 6.112     Disposition of Certain Wastes
	Sec. 6.113     Unlawful Disposition of Trash
	Sec. 6.114     Collection Rates
	Secs. 6.115–6.120     Reserved


	ADD:
	ARTICLE 6.100 GARBAGE AND TRASH
	Division 1. General Provisions
	RENUMBERED:
	Division 2 Brush Collection
	Sec. 6.141     Definition
	Sec. 6.142     Brush Parameters
	Sec. 6.143     Frequency of Collection
	Sec. 6.144     Location of Collection
	Sec. 6.145     Charges for Brush Collection


	Container Service – Recvcle
	Container Service – Recvcle
	Container Service – Recvcle
	Container Service – Recvcle




